
TENTATIVE AGENDA AND MEETING NOTICE 
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2025 AT 5:30 PM 
WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 JULY 15, 2025, REGULAR MEETING
 JULY 15, 2025, CLOSED SESSION

1 

3 APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 5, 2025 AGENDA 13 
5:35 4 PUBLIC COMMENT 

 WILL LAST UP TO ONE HOUR, DEPENDING ON THE
NUMBER OF SPEAKERS

CHAIRMAN EGGERS 15 

5:40 5 LUCKY DOG VINTAGE MARKET - USE OF HUMAN SERVICES
LOT 

MR. TREVOR SHUE 17 

5:45 6 BLUE RIDGE RISING RESOLUTION MR. RYAN ROBINSON 23 
5:50 7 SDR FINAL DEBRIS REMOVAL COST MR. CHIP PATTERSON 27 
6:00 8 WATAUGA COOPERATIVE EXTENSION - PROPOSED COUNTY

VEHICLE PURCHASE 
MR. JIM HAMILTON 29 

6:05 9 MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
A. UTILITY VEHICLE PURCHASE REQUEST
B. CONTRACT RENEWAL FOR RECREATION CENTER

HVAC MONITORING

MR. ROBERT MARSH 
33 
47 

6:10 10 EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
A. TOWER CONSTRUCTION AND SITE MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACT 
B. EMERGENCY SERVICES FACILITY TOWER ENGINEERING

CONTRACT
C. RADIO SYSTEM MAINTENANCE CONTRACT RENEWAL

MR. WILL HOLT 
71 

603 

609 
6:15 11 APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO FIRE APPENDICES COMMITTEE MR. JASON WALKER 631 
6:20 12 SANITATION DEPARTMENT TRAILER PURCHASE REQUEST MR. CHRIS MARRIOTT 635 
6:25 13 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 2
B. PROPOSED HUMAN SERVICES PARKING LOT AND

PARKING DECK AGREEMENT WITH APPALACHIAN
STATE

MR. DERON GEOUQUE 
641 
647 

6:30 14 BREAK 657 
6:40 15 CLOSED SESSION 

 ATTORNEY-CLIENT MATTERS PER G. S. § 143-318.11(A)(3)
 LAND ACQUISITION PER G.S. § 143-318.11(A)(5)
 PERSONNEL MATTERS PER G. S. § 143-318.11(A)(1)

657 



TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

6:50 16 POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 659 
6:55 17 ADJOURN 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

July 15, 2025, Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2025, Closed Session 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

1



DRAFT 
MEETING MINUTES 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JULY 15, 2025 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, July 15, 2025, 
at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County Administration 
Building in Boone, North Carolina. 

1. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

Chairman Eggers called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.  The following were present: 

PRESENT: Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Todd Castle, Vice-Chairman 
Emily Greene, Commissioner 
Tim Hodges, Commissioner 
Ronnie Marsh, Commissioner 
Nathan Miller, County Attorney  
Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Katie Hancock, Clerk to the Board 

Commissioner Hodges offered a prayer and Commissioner Marsh led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Eggers presented the June 17, 2025, regular and closed session meeting minutes.  

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the June 17, 2025, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the June 17, 2025, 
closed session minutes as presented. 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Eggers called for additions or corrections to the July 15, 2025, agenda. 

County Manager Geouque requested the following addition: 

• Agenda Item 6 to include the following:

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

2



B. Consideration of New Projects for the North Carolina Department of
Transportation State Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP 8.0)

Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the July 15, 2025, 
agenda as amended. 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment. 

5. APPOINTMENT OF CLERK TO THE BOARD

Chairman Eggers reported that Katherine “Katie” Hancock had been hired to fill the vacancy 
created by the retirement of long-serving Clerk to the Board, Anita Fogle. He proposed that Ms. 
Hancock be appointed as Clerk to the Board/Administrative Assistant. 

Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the appointment of 
Katie Hancock as Clerk to the Board/Administrative Assistant. 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

6. PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS

A. High Country Rural Planning Organization (RPO) and Watauga County
Transportation Projects Overview

Mr. David Graham, Transportation Planner with the High Country Council of
Governments, presented an overview of the Rural Planning Organization (RPO)
Comprehensive Transportation Plan and Watauga County projects in the State
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).

This presentation was for informational purposes only; therefore, no action was required.

B. Consideration of New Projects for the North Carolina Department of Transportation
State Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP 8.0)

Mr. Jason Walker, Planning and Inspections Director, along with Mr. David Graham,
Transportation Planner with the High Country Council of Governments, requested that
Watauga County submit three highway projects and three bicycle/pedestrian projects from
the Holding Tank List for consideration in the upcoming State Transportation Improvement
Plan (STIP 8.0). Mr. Walker presented a list of all current projects on the Holding Tank
List, along with the top three ranked projects in each category based on a community
survey. The following projects received the highest rankings and were recommended for
submission.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

3



 
 
 

Highway Projects Bicycle/Pedestrian Projects 
1. H230697: NC-194 from US-221/421 

to Castle Ford Road 
 

Description: Modernize roadway, 
including construction of center turn lane 
and sidewalks 
 

1. B230730: Middle Fork Greenway, 
Section 5B 

 

Description: From south of Jordan Cook 
Road to Watauga Medical Center 

 

2. H090163-A: US-421 from Tennessee 
state line to US-321/421 junction near 
Vilas 
 

Description: Widen to multiple lanes 
 

2. B230735: Middle Fork Greenway, 
Section 5C 

 

Description: From Payne Branch Park to 
Goldmine Brank Park 

3. H111013: NC-105 Bypass from  
NC-105 to US-321/421   
 

Description: Widen roadway to three lanes 
with 5-foot paved shoulders to 
accommodate bicycles 
 

3. B230668: Middle Fork Greenway, 
Section 1B 

 

Description: From South of the Blue 
Ridge Parkway to Chestnut Ridge 
Parkway 

 

 
The Board agreed to select the top three highway and bicycle/pedestrian projects as ranked 
by the community survey. 
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the 
submission of the selected projects for consideration in the upcoming State Transportation 
Improvement Plan (STIP 8.0). 

 
VOTE:    Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 
7.   PROPOSED FINAL REVISION TO HOME & COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT 
(H&CCBG) FY 2025 ALLOCATION 
 

Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Project on Aging Director, requested that the Board approve a final revision 
to the FY 2025 Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) allocation. The revision 
involved moving $649 from In-Home Aide Level II to In-Home Aide Level I services. The overall 
allocation and required local match remained unchanged.  
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the final revision to 
the FY 2025 Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) allocation as presented. 
 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

4



 
 
8.   NORTH CAROLINA AMATEUR SPORTS GRANT ACCEPTANCE REQUEST 
 

Ms. Keron Poteat, Parks and Recreation Director, requested that the Board accept a $20,000 grant 
awarded through North Carolina Amateur Sports.  
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to accept the $20,000 grant 
from North Carolina Amateur Sports 
 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
9.   K-9 PURCHASE REQUEST 
 

Captain Carolynn Johnson, Watauga County Sheriff’s Office, reported that the department recently 
hired a K-9 Deputy from Avery County to fill a deputy vacancy.  Avery County would not release 
his K-9 unless Watauga County paid $20,000. Captain Johnson stated that the Sheriff’s Office 
secured a private donor willing to contribute the full amount.   
 
Captain Johnson requested that the Board accept the $20,000 donation to purchase the K-9 from 
Avery County.  
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to accept the $20,000 donation 
for the purchase of the Avery County K-9. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
Upon purchasing the K-9, the County would need to declare the animal as surplus property and 
approve a private sale to the deputy. This action is authorized under G.S. § 160A-266 and  
§ 160A-267 and was necessary as all existing K-9 positions were filled, and no funds were 
budgeted for an additional K-9 deputy. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to declare the K-9 as surplus 
property. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to adopt the Resolution 
Authorizing the Sale of Personal Property Worth Less Than $30,000 (G.S. § 160A-266; 267) to 
approve the private sale of the surplus K-9 to the deputy.   
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

5



 
 
10.   EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
 

A. Hurricane Helene Update 
 

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, shared a brief update on Hurricane Helene 
recovery efforts.  
 

• Most insurance claims have been processed and submitted to FEMA.  
• Debris removal is ongoing, with over 400,000 cubic yards cleared from waterways.  
• The Private Property Debris Removal program is set to begin soon.  
• Initial watershed repair projects have been approved, and over 475 private roads 

and bridges have been inspected.  
• To date, over $540,000 in FEMA reimbursements have been secured.  
• The Multi-Agency Resource Center remains open Friday mornings, though usage 

is low and under review. 
 

Mr. Holt expressed appreciation for the continued partnership with local, state, and federal 
agencies supporting recovery and resilience efforts.  
 
This update was for informational purposes only; no action was required. 

 
B. Emergency Services Vehicle Purchase 

 

Mr. Holt requested Board approval for one (1) new 2025 F-150 to replace a 2019 model. 
The total cost, including vehicle and upfit, is $93,499.80. 
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the 
purchase of the 2025 F-150 and upfit in the amount of $93,499.80. 

 
VOTE:   Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 

C. EMS Third-Party Billing Service Agreement 
 

Mr. Holt requested Board approval for a contract with EMS Management & Consultants, 
Inc. to provide third-party billing services and electronic patient care reporting for the 
County’s new ambulance service.  The cost of the service is 7.5% of net collections billed.   
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to approve the contract 
with EMS Management & Consultants, Inc. for third-party billing and patient care 
reporting services at a rate of 7.5% of net collections. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

6



 
 

D. Request to Purchase EMS Ambulance Mobiles and Portable Radio Equipment 
 

Mr. Holt requested formal Board approval for the purchase of 16 portable radios and 10 
mobile radios for use in both existing and incoming EMS vehicles. The total cost of the 
equipment is $236,182.86.   
 
To avoid a scheduled 7% price increase ($16,532.80), staff placed the order in advance of 
the meeting.   
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the purchase 
of portable and mobile radios from Motorola in the amount of $236,182.86. 

 
VOTE:   Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 
11.   WATAUGA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD’S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE FIRE 
APPENDICES COMMITTEE 
 

Mr. Jason Walker, Planning and Inspections Director, presented the Planning Board’s 
recommendations for the Fire Appendices Committee. A public hearing was held on  
May 6, 2025, to allow citizen comment regarding the potential repeal of the fire appendices. 
Following the hearing, a Fire Appendices Committee was formed to review the matter and develop 
recommendations.  Below are the Planning Board’s recommendations for committee composition. 
 

Role Recommended Members 
Two Fire Chiefs Recommendation to come from the Fire Board 

Two Commissioners Internally decided by the Board of Commissioners 

County Manager Deron Geouque 

Fire Marshal Shane Garland 

Planning Director Jason Walker 

One Surveyor 
1. Alex Crowe 
2. Donald McNeil 
3. Rick Snider 

One Engineer 
1. Patrick Warren 
2. Derrick Goddard 
3. Mike Trew 

One Developer 

1. Patrick Warren 
2. Jeff Fisher 
3. Todd Rice 
4. Bill Aceto 
5. Jay Harrill* 

One At-Large Member 
1. Mike Wilson 
2. Joseph Greer 
3. Chuck Campbell 
4. George Bartholomew* 

 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

7



 

* The two individuals marked with an asterisk were recommended after the Planning Board meeting. 
The Planning Board recommended that two commissioners serve on the committee. Chairman 
Eggers and Commissioner Marsh volunteered to fill those seats. 
 
The Board requested that Mr. Walker contact the individuals recommended for the surveyor, 
engineer, developer, and at-large positions to confirm their willingness to serve. Once 
confirmations are received, Mr. Walker will present the finalized list for the Board’s review and 
approval at the next meeting. 
 
This item was presented for the Board’s information, and no formal action was required at this 
time. 
 
12.   TAX MATTERS 
 

A. Monthly Collections Report 
 

Mr. Deron Geouque, County Manager, presented the Monthly Collections Report from  
June 2025 on behalf of Mr. Tyler Rash.  
 
The report was presented for informational purposes only; therefore, no action was 
required. 

 
B. Refunds and Releases 

 

Mr. Geouque presented the Refunds and Releases Report.  
 

Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to accept the Refunds 
and Releases as presented. 

 
VOTE:   Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 

C. Annual Settlement of the Tax Collector 
 

Pursuant to G.S. § 105-373, an annual settlement of the Tax Collector must be prepared 
and submitted to the Board of Commissioners for review and approval. Mr. Geouque, on 
behalf of Mr. Rash, presented the annual settlement. 

 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the Annual 
Settlement of the Tax Collector as presented by Mr. Geouque. 

 
VOTE:   Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 

D. Oath to Collect Taxes 
 

Mr. Geouque stated that each year the Board of County Commissioners is required to 
authorize the Tax Administrator of Watauga County to collect taxes for the upcoming fiscal 
year. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

8



 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to authorize the Tax 
Administrator to begin the process of tax collection.  

 
VOTE:   Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 
13.   MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

A. Howard Knob Park Proposal for Construction Materials Testing 
 

The Howard Knob Park project required construction materials testing services.  Funds had 
been budgeted to cover the expense. The project required no County funding and was to 
be paid by the Watauga TDA and grant funds.  Staff recommended that the Board, 
contingent upon County Attorney review, approve the contract with WSP for construction 
materials testing in the amount of $37,500. 
 
Mr. Nathan Miller, County Attorney, noted concerns with the contract, specifically with 
Paragraph 7 – “Limitation of Liability” and Paragraph 18 – “Disputes”, particularly the 
litigation clause requiring all disputes to be adjudicated in the state of New York. 
 
Due to these concerns, Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved 
to table the discussion to allow Mr. Miller time to contact WSP for clarification and 
possible revisions.  
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
B. Budget Amendments 

 

Mr. Deron Geouque, Finance Director, presented the budget amendments for approval as 
included in the Board packet. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented.     

 
VOTE:   Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 

C. Boards and Commissions 
 

AppalCART Board 
 

Appalachian State University recommended the appointment of Mr. Matt Dull, Deputy 
Chief Operating Officer, to the AppalCART Board, replacing Mr. John Adams, former 
Interim Chief Financial Officer.  
 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

9



Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to waive the first 
reading and appoint Mr. Dull to the AppalCART Board. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
CCC&TI Board 
 

Mr. Lowell Younce’s term on the Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute 
Board of Trustees expired on June 30, 2025.  Mr. Younce expressed his willingness to 
continue serving, and the Board of Trustees requested his reappointment.  
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to waive the first 
reading and reappoint Mr. Younce to the Caldwell Community College and Technical 
Institute Board of Trustees. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
Jury Commission 
 

Mr. Thomas Broadus Redmon was previously selected for the Jury Commission for the 
2025 – 2026 term. Mr. Redmon was willing to continue to serve on the commission.   
 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to waive the first 
reading and reappoint Mr. Redmon to the Jury Commission. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
Parks and Recreation Commission 
 

The Recreation Commission Board submitted the following reappointment 
recommendations and requested that the Board approve the names and waive the first 
reading requirement.  
 

Name Representing Term 

Ms. Brittany Bolick Hardin Park School Term expired 06/2025; 
reappointed through 06/2028 

Mr. Sam Painter Valle Crucis School Term expired 06/2025; 
reappointed through 06/2028 

Ms. Virginia Roseman Boone Town Council Annual appointment;  
serves through 12/2025 

Mr. Doug Matheson Blowing Rock Town Council Annual appointment;  
new term through 06/2026 

Mr. Ron Henries WCS Board of Education Annual appointment;  
new term through 06/2026 

 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

10



Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to waive the first 
reading and approve the names submitted for the Recreation Commission Board. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
D. Announcements 

 

AMOREM scheduled a private open house celebration for the Patient Care Unit of the 
High Country on Friday, July 25, 2025 from 1:00 PM until 1:45 PM at Archie Carroll Road 
in Boone, NC. Members of the Board were invited to attend. 

 
14.   COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

There were no Commissioner comments. 
 
15.   CLOSED SESSION 
 

At 6:57 PM, Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, made a motion to go into 
Closed Session pursuant to G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(3) to discuss attorney-client privileged matters, 
§ 143-318.11(a)(5) to consider matters related to land acquisition, and  
§ 143-318.11(a)(1) to discuss personnel matters. 

 
VOTE:   Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 
At 9:33 PM, Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Chairman Eggers, moved to resume the open 
meeting. 

 
VOTE:   Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 

16.   ADJOURN 
 

At 9:34 PM, Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Chairman Eggers, moved to adjourn the meeting. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 
 

 
Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: Katie Hancock, Clerk to the Board 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 5, 2025, AGENDA 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Public Comment will last up to one hour, depending on the number of speakers. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

15



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

16



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

LUCKY DOG VINTAGE MARKET – USE OF HUMAN SERVICES LOT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Trevor Shue, organizer of the Lucky Dog Vintage Market, has submitted a request to use the grassy 
area and parking lot at the Human Services Center for market events on select dates from August 
2025 through August 2026. The proposed dates do not conflict with the ASU football schedules 
and the Watauga County Farmers’ Market. The rate to be charged is $200; which is the same as 
last time. 

Staff seeks direction from the Board. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

17



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

18



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA                                 LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 
THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of August 5, 2025, by and between 
Watauga County, a corporate body politic, being hereinafter referred to as the “Licensor,” and 
Lucky Dog Vintage, being hereinafter referred to as “Licensee”. 
 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 
 
WHEREAS, Licensor is the owner of the parking lot and building of the Watauga County Human 
Services Center located at 132 Poplar Grove Connector, Boone NC 28607, hereinafter referred to 
as the “Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee wants to use the parking lot to host its clothing market on the dates listed 
in Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensor and Licensee hereto desire to enter into an agreement to set forth their 
respective rights and obligations regarding use and maintenance of the Property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties 
hereto hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Grant of License.  Licensor hereby grants to Licensee, subject to all of the terms and 

conditions hereof, a license to use the Property to host its clothing market on the dates listed in 
Exhibit A for itself, its clients, customers, patrons, other related invitees and the general public. 
However, Licensee does not have the rights granted herein to the exclusion of the rights of the 
Licensor to use the Property in any matter it wishes so long as it does not unreasonably impede 
the use of the Property by Licensee for the purpose stated herein. 

 
2. Personal License Only.  It is agreed between Licensor and Licensee that this license is 

personal to Licensee and shall not inure to the successors or assigns of Licensee. 
 

3. Licensee Has No Interest or Estate.    Licensee agrees that it does not and shall not claim at 
any time any interest or estate of any kind or extent whatsoever in the Property, or any portion 
thereof, by virtue of this license or Licensee’s occupancy or use hereunder and Licensor 
conveys no interest in the Property to Licensee by this Agreement. 

 
4. Use of the Property.    The Licensor shall collect the garbage from the containers on the 

Property at 6:00 PM on the dates listed in Exhibit A, and this License shall automatically 
terminate at the conclusion of each date’s use. The Licensee shall keep the Property in a good 
state of repair and in a safe condition during its use on each occasion. Any repairs or other 
changes made by Licensee shall require the prior consent of Licensor and shall be at the sole 
cost and expense of Licensee. The Licensee shall pay to Licensor a fee of Two Hundred Dollars 
($200.00) per date of use as outlined in Exhibit A for its use of the Property. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

19



 
5. Indemnification.    Licensee shall indemnify and hold Licensor, jointly and severally, its 

agents, servants, employees, invitees, representatives and their respective heirs, successors and 
assigns, harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, liabilities or expenses 
concerning bodily injury or death, damage to the Property resulting from, or in any way 
connected with, the condition or use of the Property by Licensee, its invitees, customers, guests 
and the general public during the use of the Property. Licensor shall not be liable to Licensee 
if for any reason whatever Licensee’s occupation or use of the Property hereunder shall be 
hindered or disturbed. Licensee shall be responsible for maintaining a liability insurance policy, 
at its sole cost and expense, naming the Licensor as named insured, in form and amount 
mutually agreeable between Licensor and Licensee. 

 
6. Termination of License.    This License shall commence at 9:00 AM and automatically 

terminate at 6:00 PM on the dates listed in Exhibit A. 
 

7. Modification.    The terms, covenants, conditions and provisions of this License Agreement 
may be extended, abrogated, modified, rescinded or amended in whole or in part only with the 
consent of the Licensor and Licensee and only in writing. 

 
8. Applicable Law.    This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State 

of North Carolina. 
 

9. Notices.    Any notices or other communications to be given hereunder shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed to have been given if delivered in person or mailed by United States certified 
or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the parties at the following 
address, or to such other address as shall be given in writing by one party to the other: 

 
As to Licensor: 
 

Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Watauga County 
814 West King Street, Room 205 
Boone, NC 28607 
 

 As to Licensee: 
  

 Trevor Shue 
 Lucky Dog Vintage 

1167 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 

 

10. Recording.    This Agreement, or Memorandum thereof, shall not be recorded without 
Licensor’s prior written consent, and if recorded Licensee hereby agrees to pay the cost and 
expense thereof. 

 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

20



11. Waiver.    No waiver of any condition, covenant or restriction of this Agreement by either 
party shall be deemed to imply or constitute a further waiver of the same or any other 
condition or covenant of this Agreement. 

 
12. Captions.    The captions of the various paragraphs of this Agreement are for convenience 

only and are not a part of this Agreement and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms 
and provisions of this Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, all as of the day 
and year first above written. 

 

Licensor:      Licensee: 
 
Watauga County     Lucky Dog Vintage 
 
 
By:     ____________________________  By:     ____________________________ 
               Deron Geouque        Trevor Shue 
               County Manager 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 

 ____________________________ 
 Katie Hancock 
 Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 
 
Exhibit A: Market Dates 
 

• August 23, 2025 
• September 20, 2025 
• October 19, 2025 
• November 21, 2025 
• March 21, 2026 
• April 18, 2026 
• May 23, 2026 
• June 20, 2026 
• July 18, 2026 
• August 21, 2026 

  

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

21



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

22



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

BLUE RIDGE RISING RESOLUTION 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Ryan Robinson, Head of Corporate Responsibility and Community Partnerships for Mast 
General Store, has requested the Board’s consideration of a resolution of support from the Blue 
Ridge Parkway Foundation. The Foundation is seeking endorsement from the 29 counties along 
the Parkway corridor as part of a regional effort to advocate for funding that supports unified 
county interests and Helene Recovery initiatives. To date, 21 counties have adopted the resolution. 

Staff seeks direction from the Board.  

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

23



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

 
 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF FUNDING FOR REPAIRS AND STRATEGIC  
IMPLEMENTATION OF BLUE RIDGE RISING ALONG THE BLUE RIDGE PARKWAY 

 
WHEREAS, the Blue Ridge Parkway traverses 469 miles from Afton Mountain in Virginia to the Qualla 
Boundary in North Carolina and unites these two states' unique mountain cultures and identities with a 
world-renowned national park that celebrates the places, communities, and people along the Parkway; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Blue Ridge Parkway is the most-visited unit of the national park system, attracting 
nearly seventeen million visitors each year and contributing significantly to the local and regional 
economies in Virginia and North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, the Parkway generates approximately $1.4 billion in visitor spending and $1.8 billion in 
total economic output for the 1,799,000 residents of the surrounding corridor of twenty-nine counties, 
seven independent Virginia cities, and numerous municipalities in North Carolina and Virginia, including 
the towns of Buchanan, Fincastle, and Troutville in Botetourt County; and 

WHEREAS, the Blue Ridge Parkway Foundation serves as the sole official philanthropic partner to the 
Blue Ridge Parkway, advocating for necessary funding and resources for the Parkway’s maintenance, 
preservation, and community engagement; and 

WHEREAS, the Blue Ridge Rising strategic plan provides a roadmap for the sustainable management 
and enhancement of the Parkway, ensuring that it continues to serve as a vital resource for environmental 
education, recreation, tourism, and community connection; and 

WHEREAS, Tropical Storm Helene has caused catastrophic damage and loss of life for several 
communities in western North Carolina and southwest Virginia, including those communities adjacent to 
the Parkway; and 

WHEREAS, repairs are critical to preserving the safety and accessibility of the Parkway and its adjacent 
communities, which is essential for their economic wellbeing; and 

WHEREAS, collaboration among local, state, and federal governments is critical in this response and 
imperative to secure the necessary funding and policies that will sustain and benefit the communities 
surrounding the Blue Ridge Parkway; and 

WHEREAS, the establishment of a coalition composed of elected officials and community 
representatives will enhance advocacy efforts and foster a unified regional voice for the Blue Ridge 
Parkway corridor.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Watauga County Board of Commissioners endorses 
and supports the following: 

1. Funding for Repairs: Urging state and federal governments to prioritize and allocate funding for 
repairs along the Blue Ridge Parkway to ensure its continued safety and accessibility; 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

24



2. Implementation of the Blue Ridge Rising Strategic Plan: Advocating for the full funding and 
implementation of the Blue Ridge Rising Strategic Plan to enhance visitor experience, preserve 
natural resources, and promote sustainable tourism along the Parkway; 

3. Collaboration and Support: Calling upon local, state, and federal officials to collaborate with 
the Blue Ridge Parkway Foundation and other stakeholders to secure resources and policies that 
benefit the Parkway and its surrounding communities; and 

4. Coalition Creation: Supporting the formation of a coalition of elected officials and community 
representatives dedicated to advocating for the Blue Ridge Parkway, ensuring that the needs and 
voices of the communities along the corridor are effectively represented. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to relevant local, state, and 
federal entities, as well as the Blue Ridge Parkway Foundation, to demonstrate our unified support for the 
Parkway and its vital role in our communities. 

ADOPTED this 5th day of August, 2025. 

 

 

_______________________________________ 
Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Katie Hancock, Clerk to the Board 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

25



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

26



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

SDR FINAL DEBRIS REMOVAL COST 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Southern Disaster Recovery (SDR) has completed all final punch list and quality control items. 
According to Mr. Patterson, due to data lag and the volume of debris processed from the 2,000-
item punch list, the total cost of right-of-way debris removal is $7.2 million. SDR is requesting 
that the final Not to Exceed (NTE) amount be set at $7,200,000, which is $750,000 more than the 
previous amount of $6,450,000. There is a lag between work completed and invoicing. SDR has 
already completed and billed more than the $6,450,000 amount in an effort to eliminate and 
complete the project. All funds are 100% reimbursable by FEMA. The County Attorney would 
need to advise on the legal issue regarding the services completed and compensation owed to SDR. 
Additionally, staff has identified 14 remaining sites for removal. 

Staff seeks direction from the Board. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

27



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

28



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

WATAUGA COOPERATIVE EXTENSION – PROPOSED COUNTY VEHICLE PURCHASE 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Jim Hamilton, County Extension Director, is requesting the purchase of a county-owned 
vehicle to support Extension staff travel for farm visits, workshops, meetings, and programming. 
Due to significant increases in state vehicle lease costs and anticipated reductions in state travel 
funding, maintaining the current state van lease is no longer cost-effective. The request proposes 
using unencumbered funds from a currently vacant 4-H agent position to offset the cost of a vehicle 
purchase, with a preference for a Toyota Sienna due to its passenger and equipment transport 
capacity.  

The request does not include vehicle maintenance and fuel. These expenses will be incorporated 
now and in next year’s budget. 

Staff seeks direction from the Board regarding the proposed purchase. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

29



 

County Vehicle Request for Watauga Cooperative Extension 

Extension’s state van contract monthly use fees are going up from $307 per month to $460 
(with per mile fees after 1000 miles also going from $0.35 to $0.44). Additionally, with expected 
forthcoming projected state cuts to Extension travel budgets at 20% or more (due to federal 
cuts), this will significantly reduce our agent’s travel capacity for county farm & property visits, 
meetings, workshops, & trainings. Watauga Extension will have to increase our county budget 
significantly for travel to make up for this shortfall. In the past, Watauga Extension has also had 
access to the county’s Soil & Water truck and Parks & Rec vans for additional vehicle options. 
However, due to increased use of those vehicles by those county departments, ‘shared’ travel is 
no longer a viable option.  
 
The current state van in use by Watauga Extension is a 2016, 7 passenger Dodge Caravan with 
75,000 miles. Under the new state lease, our annual travel costs for that vehicle will be well 
over $6,000 ($5,520 per year + $~1,000 mileage fees).  
 
With a county-owned vehicle, NC State travel funding can be more efficiently allocated for agent 
travel & less additional county budget to subsidize it (we have added $1,000 to our travel line 
each year over the past three years due to increased costs). Many other county Extension 
departments have relinquished their state vehicles for this reason and for more cost-efficient 
options available through county motor pool/vehicle procurement. 

Proposed action: 

Our 4-H agent recently separated (on July 18). Due to a hiring freeze at NC State, Watauga 
Extension will have unencumbered budget this fiscal year, as we do not know when the position 
can be reposted or refilled. My best guess is that it will be at least 6 months (but we realistically 
feel it will be at least 9). 

I propose that the county uses unencumbered budget to purchase a new county vehicle for 
Extension travel.   

Unencumbered Extension budget for 4-H Position for: 

11.5 month vacancy:  $29,984 
6 month vacancy:        $15,644 
9 month vacancy:    $23,466 –(it is my hope we may be able to refill the position in 9 months) 

 

 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

30



Vehicle options (From NC Sheriff’s Association Procurement):  

The following is a list of vehicle options from the Sheriff’s Association procurement website. 
https://ncsheriffs.org/procurement/vehicle-motorcycle We would recommend the Toyota 
Sienna due to its passenger & storage capacity. Staff often transport groups to workshops & 
programming and seats can be stowed for equipment transport. We would need an additional 
~$13,201 to purchase this vehicle with an expected 9-month vacancy with our 4-H agent 
position. 

(Bid 25-11-0912) Item: 124, Toyota, RAV4 Hybrid LE AWD, 4435  $31,365.00 

(Bid 25-11-0912) Item: 127, Toyota, Sienna Hybrid LE FWD (8 Passenger), 5402 $36,667.00  

(Bid 25-11-0912) Item: 215, Ford, F-150 Super Cab XL 145ʺ WB 6.5` Bed 4×2, X1K $36,725.00 

Additional background on state-funded Watauga Extension Travel: 

Our Extension state-funded travel allocation covers mileage (when agents use personal 
vehicles), meal per diem, conference/training registration fees, and lodging costs. Our state van 
lease & fees ALSO come out of that allocation. Each year, Cooperative Extension (at the state 
level) determines our office’s annual travel budget allocation. In the past, we used to have a ‘per 
agent allocation’ (funded by the state) of around $3,500 per agent—and we did not have to 
request or use any county funds for travel. The entire staff share and frequently use the state 
van for programs and for longer trips to reduce wear & tear on their personal vehicles. Since 
2022, our state travel allocation was set on a post-covid use rate per office. Watauga Extension 
was given a county total allocation of $12,500---which translates to just over $2,000 per agent. 
Over the last 3 years, we have had to request additional travel funds from the county to help 
cover agent travel. With state van fees now going up to over $600 per month, this will 
effectively cut each agent’s travel by more than half and we will have to continue to request 
even more additional county funds. For these reasons, we want to relinquish the state van and 
request the purchase of a county vehicle. Owning a county vehicle outright will save us from 
having to continue to include (and raise) our county line item for travel each year.  

Our agents use the state van (and their own personal vehicles) to meet the programming 
mission of Extension to serve our county residents. Each agent is active in their programming, 
respective professional associations and attends required trainings (often requiring out-of-
county travel) to make sure we are providing optimal services and programming to our county 
farmers & other clientele. We also transport clientele to a number of programs and workshops 
throughout the year, using the state van. A new county-owned shared vehicle will pay for itself 
within 3-4 years. This is our first request for a county vehicle in my 19 year tenure with Watauga 
Extension. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

31

https://ncsheriffs.org/procurement/vehicle-motorcycle
https://www.myvendorlink.com/external/award?s=166484&i=124
https://www.myvendorlink.com/external/award?s=166484&i=127
https://www.myvendorlink.com/external/award?s=166484&i=215


Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

32



AGENDA ITEM 9: 
 
MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
 

A. Utility Vehicle Purchase Request 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The FY 2025–2026 budget included funds for the purchase of a Bobcat UW56 utility vehicle, 
along with a 72" snowplow and 68" angle broom. This equipment will be used by Maintenance for 
snow removal at the Courthouse parking lots and parking deck during the winter months, and for 
general utility purposes the remainder of the year. Mr. Marsh, Maintenance Director, will request 
the Board award the bid to Bobcat of Charlotte, the lowest responsive bidder, in the amount of 
$75,343.75. Adequate funds are budgeted to cover the expense.  
 
Board action is requested to approve the purchase of the Bobcat UW56 utility vehicle, snowplow, 
and brush attachment in the amount of $75,343.75. 
  

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

33



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

34



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

35



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

36



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

37



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

38



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

39



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

40



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

41



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

42



 

 

 
Product Quotation 
Quotation Number: BM1338179 
Quote Sent Date: Aug 05, 2025 
Expiration Date: Sep 04, 2025 

Your Bobcat Contact 
Brady Murdoff 
Phone:  
Email: brady.murdoff@doosan.com 

Your Customer Contact 
Robert Marsh 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Deliver to 
Watauga County Building Maintenance 
Dept  
BOONE, NC, 28607 

Bobcat Dealer 
Bobcat of Charlotte, Charlotte, NC 
4923 BROOKSHIRE BOULEVARD  
CHARLOTTE, NC, 28216 

Bill to 
Watauga County Building Maintenance 
Dept 
BOONE, NC, 28607 

 
Item Name Item Number Quantity Price Each Total 
Bobcat UW56 M1225 1 56,406.00 56,406.00 
Standard Equipment: 
Adjustable Vinyl Seats 
All-Wheel Steer 
Automatically Activated Glow Plugs 
Auxiliary Hydraulics 

Variable Flow with dual direction detent 
Beverage Holders 
Bob-Tach 
Boom Float 
Cargo Box Support 
Cruise Control 
Speed Management 
Enclosed Cab with HVAC  
Dual Port USB charger 
Lower Engine Guard 
Limited Slip Transaxle 
Engine and Hydraulic Monitor with Shutdown 
Front LED Work Lights 
Full-time Four-Wheel Drive 

 
Horsepower Management 

Roll Over Protective Structure (ROPS) . Meets Requirements of 
SAE-J1040 & ISO 3471 
Falling Object Protective Structure (FOPS) . Meets 
Requirements of SAE-J1043 & ISO3449, Level I 

Dome Light 
Hydraulic Dump Box 
Instrumentation: Standard 5" Display with Keyless Start, Engine 
Temperature and Fuel Gauges, Hour meter, RPM and Warning 
Indicators. Includes maintenance interval notification, fault 
display, job codes, quick start, and security lockouts. 
Joystick, Manually Controlled with Lift Arm Float 
Lift Arm Support 
Parking Brake, automatic 
Power Steering with Tilt Steering Wheel 
Radiator Screen 
Rear Receiver Hitch 
Seat Belts, Shoulder Harness 
Spark Arrestor Muffler 
Suspension, 4-wheel independent 
Tires: 27 x 10.5-15 (8 ply), Lug Tread 
Toolcat Interlock Control System (TICS) 
Two-Speed Transmission 
Machine Warranty: 12 Months, unlimited hours 
Bobcat Engine Warranty: Additional 12 Months or total of 2000 
hours after initial 12 month warranty 

Deluxe Road Package 
Included:  Deluxe Road Package includes: 
Backup Alarm, Turn Signals, Flashers, Tail 
Lights, Brake Lights, Rear view mirror, Side 
Mirrors, Horn, Rear work lights, and 
headlights   

M1225-P01-C01 1 2,275.00 2,275.00 

Attachment Control M1225-R08-C02 1 196.70 196.70 
Engine Block Heater M1225-A01-C02 1 112.00 112.00 
Heavy Duty Battery M1225-R07-C02 1 80.50 80.50 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

43



High Flow Package M1225-R03-C02 1 1,519.00 1,519.00 
Interior Trim M1225-A01-C04 1 158.20 158.20 
Power Bob-Tach M1225-R14-C03 1 885.50 885.50 
Radio Option M1225-R15-C02 1 415.10 415.10 
Rear View Camera M1225-R20-C01 1 275.80 275.80 
Traction Control M1225-R16-C02 1 487.20 487.20 
72" Snow Blade 6905156 1 2,824.01 2,824.01 
68" Angle Broom 7337703 1 5,923.44 5,923.44 

Workgroup - Attachment Control Kit, 
7-Pin

7439954 1 193.21 193.21 

Total for Bobcat UW56 71,751.66 
UW56 SERVICE MANUAL 7440683ENUS 1 160.00 160.00 

Total for UW56 SERVICE MANUAL 160.00 
Quote Total - USD 71,911.66 
Dealer P.D.I. 250.00 
Tariff Surcharge 1,231.09 
Freight Charges 1,400.00 
Destination Charges 376.00 
Dealer Assembly Charges 175.00 
Quote Total - USD 75,343.75 

Comment: 

*Plus applicable taxes. IF Tax Exempt, please include Tax Exempt Certificate with the order.

*Prices per the Sourcewell Contract #020223-CEC

*Sourcewell Member Number (if applicable): ____________

*All orders should include 1) Accounts Payable Contact and email address, 2) W9 with correct legal entity name, and 3) Bill to
Address.

*Orders may be placed with the contract holder or authorized dealer as allowed by the terms and conditions of the contract. *A Copy of
all orders must be provided to Heather.Messmer@Doosan.com.

*Contact Holder Information: Doosan Bobcat North America, Inc. Govt Sales, 250 E Beaton Drive, West Fargo, ND 58078. TID# 38-
0425350.

*Payment Terms: Net 60 Days. Credit cards accepted.

*Remittance address: Doosan Bobcat North America, Inc. P. O. Box 74007382, Chicago, IL 60674-7382

Doosan Bobcat North America, Inc. products may be subject up to 26% import/export tariffs. Should this occur, Doosan Bobcat North 
America, Inc. will pass on the tariff charge on all models, which includes base model, machine options, and consumables/spare parts. 
The tariff charge percentage range is from 1% to 26% and will be removed should the tariffs be lifted. The exact tariff will be 
determined by Doosan Bobcat North America, Inc.at the time of order and will not apply to freight or destination charges, sales tax, 
pre-delivery inspection, setup charges, document fees, transfer costs, finance fees, freight forwarding costs, insurance costs, 
environmental disposal costs, fuel charges, training, service plans/contracts, warranty escrow, or extended warranty coverage. Doosan 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

44



Bobcat North America, Inc. reserves the right to apply a tariff charge greater than 26% if the government implementing the tariff 
imposes tariff rates that exceed 26%. 
 
 
 
 
Customer acceptance:  
Quotation Number:: BM1338179                                 Purchase Order:___________________________________ 
 
 
Authorized Signature: 
 
Print:_______________________________    Sign:_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:_____________  Email:________________________________________________________   

 
Addresses 
 
Delivery Address________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Billing Address (if different from ship to):_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Tax Exempt: Y ▢  / N ▢ 
 
Exempt in the State of:______________________________________ 
 
Tax Exempt ID:  
 
Federal:__________________________________________________ 
 
State:____________________________________________________ 
 
Expiration Date:___________________________________________ 

 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

45



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

46



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

B. Contract Renewal for Recreation Center HVAC Monitoring

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The County’s contract with Johnson Controls for HVAC monitoring and control at the Recreation 
Center expired on July 31, 2025. Because the system in place is proprietary, the service cannot be 
competitively bid. Johnson Controls has submitted a proposal for a three-year renewal at a total 
cost of $57,200, which reflects a $4,200 decrease from the previous contract. Staff recommends 
renewing the contract at the proposed amount.  

Board action is requested to approve a three-year contract with Johnson Controls in the amount of 
$57,200. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

47



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

48



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

49



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

50



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

51



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

52



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

53



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

54



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

55



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

56



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

57



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

58



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

59



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

60



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

61



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

62



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

63



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

64



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

65



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

66



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

67



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

68



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

69



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

70



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 

A. Tower Construction and Site Modifications Contract

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

A Request for Proposals was issued for the construction of a self-supporting tower at the Rich 
Mountain site and for the necessary modifications at the Aho and Buckeye sites to accommodate 
additional microwave dishes. Three proposals were received and reviewed. Staff recommends 
awarding the contract to K-Co Enterprises, Inc., the lowest responsive bidder, with a total cost of 
$396,909. Both the County’s radio system consultant and the primary site contractor have prior 
experience with K-Co and expressed no concerns. Funds have been budgeted for this work as part 
of the overall simulcast system project.  

Board approval is requested to award a $396,909 contract to K-Co Enterprises, Inc. for tower 
construction and site modifications. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

71



July 18th, 2025 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 

Katie Hancock, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
Subject: Bid Award Request for Rich Mountain Tower and additional modifications 
 
 
Board of Commissioners, 
 
A Request for Proposals was issued for a firm to provide a self-supporting tower as delineated in the 
tower procurement documents for the Rich Mountain tower site along with the required modifications 
to the Aho and Buckeye sites for the extra microwave dishes. The County received three proposals from 
K-Co Enterprises, Inc., Built Construction LLC, and Pittsburg Tower and Tank. After review, staff 
recommends K-Co Enterprises, Inc. to the Board of Commissioners for your approval as the lowest 
responsive bidder. Both the County’s radio system consultant and the primary contractor for site 
construction have prior experience with K-Co with no reservations. The cost of the K-Co proposal is 
$379,500 for the Rich Mountain tower, $5,177 the Aho tower modification, and $12,232 for the Buckeye 
tower modification. The total cost for this portion of the project is $396,909 and funds have been 
budgeted in the construction budget for the simulcast system. Commissioner approval is requested. 
 

Respectfully, 
 

         
        William Holt, MPA, CEM, NREMT-P 
        Emergency Services Director 

 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

72



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

73



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

74



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

75



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

76



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

77



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

78



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

79



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

80



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

81



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

82



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

83



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

84



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

85



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

86



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

87



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

88



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

89



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

90



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

91



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

92



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

93



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

94



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

95



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

96



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

97



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

98



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

99



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

100



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

101



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

102



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

103



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

104



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

105



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

106



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

107



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

108



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

109



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

110



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

111



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

112



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

113



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

114



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

115



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

116



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

117



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

118



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

119



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

120



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

121



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

122



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

123



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

124



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

125



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

126



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

127



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

128



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

129



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

130



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

131



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

132



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

133



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

134



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

135



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

136



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

137



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

138



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

139



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

140



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

141



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

142



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

143



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

144



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

145



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

146



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

147



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

148



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

149



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

150



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

151



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

152



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

153



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

154



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

155



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

156



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

157



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

158



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

159



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

160



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

161



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

162



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

163



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

164



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

165



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

166



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

167



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

168



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

169



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

170



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

171



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

172



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

173



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

174



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

175



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

176



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

177



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

178



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

179



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

180



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

181



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

182



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

183



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

184



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

185



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

186



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

187



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

188



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

189



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

190



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

191



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

192



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

193



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

194



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

195



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

196



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

197



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

198



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

199



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

200



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

201



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

202



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

203



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

204



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

205



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

206



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

207



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

208



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

209



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

210



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

211



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

212



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

213



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

214



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

215



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

216



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

217



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

218



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

219



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

220



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

221



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

222



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

223



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

224



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

225



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

226



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

227



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

228



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

229



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

230



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

231



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

232



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

233



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

234



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

235



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

236



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

237



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

238



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

239



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

240



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

241



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

242



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

243



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

244



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

245



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

246



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

247



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

248



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

249



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

250



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

251



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

252



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

253



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

254



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

255



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

256



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

257



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

258



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

259



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

260



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

261



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

262



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

263



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

264



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

265



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

266



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

267



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

268



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

269



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

270



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

271



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

272



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

273



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

274



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

275



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

276



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

277



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

278



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

279



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

280



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

281



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

282



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

283



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

284



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

285



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

286



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

287



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

288



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

289



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

290



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

291



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

292



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

293



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

294



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

295



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

296



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

297



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

298



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

299



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

300



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

301



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

302



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

303



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

304



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

305



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

306



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

307



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

308



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

309



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

310



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

311



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

312



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

313



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

314



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

315



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

316



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

317



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

318



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

319



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

320



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

321



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

322



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

323



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

324



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

325



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

326



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

327



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

328



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

329



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

330



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

331



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

332



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

333



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

334



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

335



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

336



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

337



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

338



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

339



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

340



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

341



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

342



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

343



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

344



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

345



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

346



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

347



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

348



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

349



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

350



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

351



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

352



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

353



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

354



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

355



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

356



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

357



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

358



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

359



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

360



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

361



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

362



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

363



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

364



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

365



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

366



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

367



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

368



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

369



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

370



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

371



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

372



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

373



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

374



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

375



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

376



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

377



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

378



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

379



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

380



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

381



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

382



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

383



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

384



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

385



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

386



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

387



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

388



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

389



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

390



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

391



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

392



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

393



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

394



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

395



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

396



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

397



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

398



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

399



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

400



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

401



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

402



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

403



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

404



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

405



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

406



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

407



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

408



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

409



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

410



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

411



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

412



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

413



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

414



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

415



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

416



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

417



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

418



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

419



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

420



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

421



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

422



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

423



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

424



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

425



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

426



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

427



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

428



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

429



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

430



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

431



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

432



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

433



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

434



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

435



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

436



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

437



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

438



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

439



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

440



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

441



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

442



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

443



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

444



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

445



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

446



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

447



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

448



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

449



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

450



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

451



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

452



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

453



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

454



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

455



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

456



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

457



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

458



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

459



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

460



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

461



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

462



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

463



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

464



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

465



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

466



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

467



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

468



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

469



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

470



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

471



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

472



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

473



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

474



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

475



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

476



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

477



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

478



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

479



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

480



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

481



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

482



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

483



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

484



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

485



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

486



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

487



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

488



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

489



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

490



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

491



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

492



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

493



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

494



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

495



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

496



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

497



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

498



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

499



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

500



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

501



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

502



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

503



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

504



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

505



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

506



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

507



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

508



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

509



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

510



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

511



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

512



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

513



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

514



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

515



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

516



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

517



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

518



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

519



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

520



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

521



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

522



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

523



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

524



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

525



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

526



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

527



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

528



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

529



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

530



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

531



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

532



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

533



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

534



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

535



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

536



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

537



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

538



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

539



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

540



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

541



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

542



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

543



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

544



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

545



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

546



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

547



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

548



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

549



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

550



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

551



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

552



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

553



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

554



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

555



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

556



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

557



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

558



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

559



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

560



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

561



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

562



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

563



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

564



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

565



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

566



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

567



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

568



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

569



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

570



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

571



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

572



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

573



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

574



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

575



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

576



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

577



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

578



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

579



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

580



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

581



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

582



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

583



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

584



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

585



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

586



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

587



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

588



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

589



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

590



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

591



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

592



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

593



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

594



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

595



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

596



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

597



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

598



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

599



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

600



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

601



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

602



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 

B. Emergency Services Facility Tower Engineering Contract

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

As part of the development of the new Emergency Services Facility, a communications tower is 
required to connect to the public safety radio system. A quote of $45,000 was received from 
Engineered Tower Solutions (ETS) for engineering services and management of the administrative 
approval process. ETS is a vendor on State contract and has already conducted a preliminary site 
walk and met with Greene Construction, Inc. to coordinate efforts. Adequate funds for this work 
have been budgeted. 

Board approval is requested to authorize the $45,000 agreement with ETS for tower engineering 
and administrative services. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

603



July 18th, 2025 

To: Board of Commissioners 

CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Katie Hancock, Clerk to the Board 

Subject: Quote for engineering and administrative approvals of new facility tower 

Board of Commissioners, 

The new Emergency Services Facility will have a communications tower to connect to the public 
safety radio system. A quote was obtained from Engineered Towered Solutions (ETS) for the engineering 
costs along with the administrative approval process management in the amount of $45,000. ETS is on 
State contract for tower construction and has conducted a preliminary site walk to gather information 
for this quote and has met Greene Construction, Inc. staff who they will be coordinating closely with. 
Funds have been budgeted for this project and your approval is requested. 

Respectfully, 

William Holt, MPA, CEM, NREMT-P 
Emergency Services Director 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

604



Contract #: 150694-ETS Engineering
Site Name: 

County: 
Address:

# Rawland: Qty Unit Cost Extended cost
1 Site Visit 2 $1,500.00 $3,000.00

2
Partial Boundary Survey with Topography 
and 1A

1 $5,500.00 $5,500.00

3
Geotechnical/Resistivity Report (per boring 
location)

1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00

4 Geotechnical Clearing -- Moderate Access $2,750.00 $0.00
4a Geotechnical Clearing -- Difficult Access $3,500.00 $0.00

5 Site Zoning and Construction Drawings (ZD's) 1 $1,750.00 $1,750.00

6 Detailed (DOI) Construction Drawings (CD's) 1 $3,750.00 $3,750.00

7 FCC NEPA Checklist w/SHPO 1 $5,500.00 $5,500.00
8 Tower Manufacturer Selection 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
9 Tower bid document 1 $1,100.00 $1,100.00

10 Tower bid review for up to 3 bids 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

11 Cost to restake Tower prior to Construction 2 $2,250.00 $4,500.00

12 Construction: Foundation Inspection 1 $2,375.00 $2,375.00

13 Construction: Concrete testing (per site visit) 1 $1,875.00 $1,875.00

14 Post construction inspection 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
15 Construction: Bearing Check $3,000.00 $0.00
16 Construction: Soil Compaction Testing $3,000.00 $0.00
17 Construction: Private Utility Locates $2,700.00 $0.00
18 Construction: Lease Exhibit $1,500.00 $0.00

$38,850.00
Collocation:

19 Structural Analysis $1,500.00 $0.00
20 Appurtenance Mapping $2,450.00 $0.00
21 Tower Mapping $2,850.00 $0.00
22 FCC Collocation NEPA $3,500.00 $0.00

23
30-Day Electrical Load Study with Data 
Loggers for SCO

$2,750.00 $0.00

$0.00
Tower Modification:

24 Pre-mod mapping $2,500.00 $0.00
25 Modification design/drawings - standard $3,500.00 $0.00
26 Modification design/drawings - extensive $6,000.00 $0.00
27 Foundation mapping $3,500.00 $0.00

28
Geotechnical investigation (1 soil bore up to 
60' depth on SS, 4 soil bores up to 20' for 
guyed towers)

$4,500.00 $0.00

29
Geo: addition of rock coring or deep 
foundation

$2,000.00 $0.00

30 Foundation drawings $2,000.00 $0.00
31 Temporary loading letter $600.00 $0.00
32 PMI $2,650.00 $0.00
33 Foundation construction inspection $3,500.00 $0.00
34 Cracked Foundation Mapping $3,500.00 $0.00

Emergency Services Center
Watauga
TBD

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

605



35
Construction Materials Testing (CMT) 
Foundation Inspection (existing foundation)

$2,375.00 $0.00

36
CWI Inspection (includes before, during, and 
after inspections per AWS guidelines)

$3,500.00 $0.00

37 NDE Weld Inspection $1,850.00 $0.00
38 Rebar Mapping $3,750.00 $0.00
39 Partial Boundary Survey with Topography $4,600.00 $0.00
40 1A Letter $900.00 $0.00

$0.00
Other tasks:

41 DHS EHP $3,000.00 $0.00
42 DHS - EA/ESA $5,500.00 $0.00
43 NEPA EA 1 $3,250.00 $3,250.00
44 Centerline Easement survey $5,500.00 $0.00

45
Botantist site inspection and report on USFS 
land

$3,500.00 $0.00

46
Wildlife biologist inspection and report on 
USFS land

$3,500.00 $0.00

47 Balloon Test $3,500.00 $0.00

48
Legal Description per State Property Office 
Requirements

1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

49 Ownership Right of Access to Site $1,000.00 $0.00

50 Site Candidate Information Package (SCIP) $3,500.00 $0.00

51
Construction Monitoring at USFS sites (daily 
rate)

$1,250.00 $0.00

52 Public Notice 1 $900.00 $900.00

53 Tribal Reimbursement Fee (TCNS) - standard $3,000.00 $0.00

54 Tribal Reimbursement Fee (TCNS) - moderate $8,000.00 $0.00

55 Tribal Reimbursement Fee (TCNS) - extensive $14,000.00 $0.00

56 Class IV Rigging Plan - standard $1,500.00 $0.00
57 Class IV Rigging Plan - extensive $3,000.00 $0.00
58 TIA Maintenance Drawings $1,250.00 $0.00
59 EOR Review $900.00 $0.00
60 Mount Analysis $1,000.00 $0.00
61 Platform Design Drawings $2,500.00 $0.00

62
Retaining Wall Design Drawings -- height less 
than 10-ft

$4,000.00 $0.00

63
Retaining Wall Design Drawings -- height 
greater than 10-ft, but less than 25-ft

$7,500.00 $0.00

64 Stormwater Control Measure Inspection $1,375.00 $0.00
65 Special Use Permit - site plan $1,750.00 $0.00

66
Special Use Permit - (1) staff member in 
attendance at 1 meeting

$1,250.00 $0.00

$6,150.00
Mobilization

67 East Zone $600.00 $0.00
68 Central Zone $350.00 $0.00
69 West Zone $850.00 $0.00

$0.00
TIA Inspection - Self-supporting tower

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

606



70 0' - 250' $1,900.00 $0.00
71 250' - 500' $2,150.00 $0.00
72 501' and above $2,400.00 $0.00

$0.00
TIA Inspection - Guyed tower

73 0' - 300' $1,900.00 $0.00
74 301' - 600' $2,150.00 $0.00
75 601' - 1,000' $3,250.00 $0.00

$0.00
Guyed tower re-tensioning & re-plumbing

76 0' - 300' $3,750.00 $0.00
77 301' - 600' $4,750.00 $0.00
78 601' - 1,000' $7,750.00 $0.00

$0.00

$45,000.00
Note: mobilization cost assessed by zone per week

Total Cost

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

607



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

608



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 

C. Radio System Maintenance Contract Renewal

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The annual maintenance contracts for the County’s public safety radio systems are due for renewal. 
Mobile Communications America has submitted a renewal quote totaling $111,512.31, which 
covers maintenance for the communications center systems ($65,412.99), tower site equipment 
($38,260.68), and mobile radio units ($7,838.64). This is a continuation of the existing contract, 
and funds are available for this purpose. 

Board approval is requested to authorize the renewal of the maintenance contracts with Mobile 
Communications America in the amount of $111,512.31. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

609



July 18th, 2025 

To: Board of Commissioners 

CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Katie Hancock, Clerk to the Board 

Subject: Quote for engineering and administrative approvals of new facility tower 

Board of Commissioners, 

Please consider my request for $111,512.31 for the renewal of three maintenance contracts 
with Mobile Communications America. This contract covers the maintenance agreement for all of our 
radio systems in the communications centers ($65,412.99), at each tower site ($38,260.68), and mobile 
equipment ($7,838.64). This is a renewal of the current contract and funds are available for this 
purpose. 

Respectfully, 

William Holt, MPA, CEM, NREMT-P 
Emergency Services Director 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

610



Date:
 

03/06/2025
 

 

Company Name:  
 

WATAUGA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT 
 

Required P.O. :
 

 
 

PO # :
 

 
 

Customer # :
 

1036494285 
 

Bill to Tag # :
 

 
 

Contract Start Date :
 

01-Jul-2025
 

Contract End Date :
 

30-Jun-2026
 

Payment Cycle :
 

ANNUALLY 
 

 

 Attn:  
 

 

Billing Address:  
 

 

City, State, Zip:  
 

 

Customer Contact:  
 

Will Holt 
 

Phone:  
 

3369720145 
 

Qty Service Name Service Description Monthly Ext Extended Amt
LSV01S01107A ASTRO SYSTEM ESSENTIAL PLUS PACKAGE $2,369.02 $28,428.28

--- DISPATCH

--- ONSITE SYS SUPPORT-STD

--- PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE1

--- REPAIR AND RETURN

--- SECURITY UPDATE SERVICE

--- SYSTEM TECH SUPPORT

--- ADVANCE EXCHANGE

--- NETWORK MONITORING

--- REMOTE SUS MGT

LSV01S01107A ASTRO SYSTEM ESSENTIAL PLUS PACKAGE $3,082.06 $36,984.71

--- DISPATCH

--- ONSITE SYS SUPPORT-STD

--- PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE1

--- REPAIR AND RETURN

--- SECURITY UPDATE SERVICE

--- SYSTEM TECH SUPPORT

--- ADVANCE EXCHANGE

--- NETWORK MONITORING

--- REMOTE SUS MGT
 

Subtotal - Recurring Services
 

$5,451.08
 

$65,412.99
 

Subtotal - One-Time Event Services
 

$0.00
 

$0.00
 

Total
 

$5,451.08
 

$65,412.99
 

 

 

THIS SERVICE AMOUNT IS SUBJECT TO STATE AND LOCAL TAXING JURISDICTIONS WHERE
APPLICABLE, TO BE VERIFIED BY MOTOROLA

 

 SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:

 

 

SERVICE AGREEMENT
 

500 W Monroe Street
Chicago, IL. 60661
(888) 325-9336
 

 

Quote Number    : QUOTE-3035403 
Contract Number:  USC000602956
Contract Modifier:  R06-MAR-2025 19:31:42 
 

BOONE, NC 28607

184 HODGES GAP 
ROAD

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

611



  

I have received Applicable Statements of Work which describe the Services and cybersecurity services provided on
this Agreement. Motorola's Terms and Conditions, including the Cybersecurity Online Terms Acknowledgement, are
attached hereto and incorporate the Cyber Addendum (available at https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/
managed-support-services/cybersecurity.html) by reference. By signing below Customer acknowledges these terms
and conditions govern all Services under this Service Agreement.

 

AUTHORIZED CUSTOMER SIGNATURE                                                  TITLE                                                  DATE
 
 

CUSTOMER (PRINT NAME)
 
  

MOTOROLA REPRESENTATIVE(SIGNATURE)                                        TITLE                                                  DATE
 
  Amber Seibert                                                                                    704-657-2122

MOTOROLA REPRESENTATIVE(PRINT NAME)                                      PHONE
 
 
 
Company Name :
 

WATAUGA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT 
 

Contract Number :
 

USC000602956 
 

Contract Modifier :
  R06-MAR-2025 19:31:42 

 

Contract Start Date :
  01-Jul-2025

 

Contract End Date :
 

30-Jun-2026
 

 

 

SERVICE AGREEMENT
 

500 W Monroe Street
Chicago, IL. 60661
(888) 325-9336
 

 

Quote Number    : QUOTE-3035403 
Contract Number:  USC000602956
Contract Modifier:  R06-MAR-2025 19:31:42 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

612

https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/managed-support-services/cybersecurity.html
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/managed-support-services/cybersecurity.html


 Service Terms and Conditions
 

Motorola Solutions Inc. ("Motorola") and the customer named in this Agreement ("Customer") hereby agree as follows:
 
Section 1. APPLICABILITY
These Maintenance Service Terms and Conditions apply to service contracts whereby Motorola will provide to Customer either (1) maintenance, support, or
other services under a Motorola Service Agreement, or (2) installation services under a Motorola Installation Agreement.
 
Section 2. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
2.1     “Agreement” means these Maintenance Service Terms and Conditions; the cover page for the Service Agreement or the Installation Agreement, as
applicable; and any other attachments, all of which are incorporated herein by this reference.  In interpreting this Agreement and resolving any ambiguities,
these Maintenance Service Terms and Conditions take precedence over any cover page, and the cover page takes precedence over any attachments,
unless the cover page or attachment states otherwise.
 
2.2    “Equipment” means the equipment that is specified in the attachments or is subsequently added to this Agreement.
 
2.3     “Services” means those installation, maintenance, support, training, and other services described in this Agreement.
 
Section 3. ACCEPTANCE
Customer accepts these Maintenance Service Terms and Conditions and agrees to pay the prices set forth in the Agreement.  This Agreement becomes
binding only when accepted in writing by Motorola.  The term of this Agreement begins on the “Start Date” indicated in this Agreement.
 
Section 4. SCOPE OF SERVICES
4.1     Motorola will provide the Services described in this Agreement or in a more detailed statement of work or other document attached to this Agreement. 
At Customer’s request, Motorola may also provide additional services at Motorola’s then-applicable rates for the services.
 
4.2     If Motorola is providing Services for Equipment, Motorola parts or parts of equal quality will be used; the Equipment will be serviced at levels set forth
in the manufacturer’s product manuals; and routine service procedures that are prescribed by Motorola will be followed
 
4.3     If Customer purchases from Motorola additional equipment that becomes part of the same system as the initial Equipment, the additional equipment
may be added to this Agreement and will be billed at the applicable rates after the warranty for that additional equipment expires.
 
4.4     All Equipment must be in good working order on the Start Date or when additional equipment is added to the Agreement.  Upon reasonable request by
Motorola, Customer will provide a complete serial and model number list of the Equipment.  Customer must promptly notify Motorola in writing when any
Equipment is lost, damaged, stolen or taken out of service.  Customer’s obligation to pay Service fees for this Equipment will terminate at the end of the
month in which Motorola receives the written notice.
 
4.5    Customer must specifically identify any Equipment that is labeled intrinsically safe for use in hazardous environments.
 
4.6     If Equipment cannot, in Motorola’s reasonable opinion, be properly or economically serviced for any reason, Motorola may modify the scope of
Services related to that Equipment; remove that Equipment from the Agreement; or increase the price to Service that Equipment.
 
4.7     Customer must promptly notify Motorola of any Equipment failure.  Motorola will respond to Customer's notification in a manner consistent with the
level of Service purchased as indicated in this.
 
Section 5. EXCLUDED SERVICES
5.1     Service excludes the repair or replacement of Equipment that has become defective or damaged from use in other than the normal, customary,
intended, and authorized manner; use not in compliance with applicable industry standards; excessive wear and tear; or accident, liquids, power surges,
neglect, acts of God or other force majeure events.
 
5.2     Unless specifically included in this Agreement, Service excludes items that are consumed in the normal operation of the Equipment, such as batteries
or magnetic tapes.; upgrading or reprogramming Equipment; accessories, belt clips, battery chargers, custom or special products, modified units, or
software; and repair or maintenance of any transmission line, antenna, microwave equipment, tower or tower lighting, duplexer, combiner, or multicoupler. 
Motorola has no obligations for any transmission medium, such as telephone lines, computer networks, the internet or the worldwide web, or for Equipment
malfunction caused by the transmission medium.
 

 

 

SERVICE AGREEMENT
 

500 W Monroe Street
Chicago, IL. 60661
(888) 325-9336
 

 

Quote Number    : QUOTE-3035403 
Contract Number:  USC000602956
Contract Modifier:  R06-MAR-2025 19:31:42 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

613



5.3     This Agreement pricing provided does not take into account prevailing wage requirement. Should prevailing wage regulations be applicable to this
project, the pricing shall be subject to change to reflect compliance with those regulations.
 
Section 6. TIME AND PLACE OF SERVICE
 Service will be provided at the location specified in this Agreement.  When Motorola performs service at Customer’s location, Customer will provide
Motorola, at no charge, a non-hazardous work environment with adequate shelter, heat, light, and power and with full and free access to the Equipment. 
Waivers of liability from Motorola or its subcontractors will not be imposed as a site access requirement.  Customer will provide all information pertaining to
the hardware and software elements of any system with which the Equipment is interfacing so that Motorola may perform its Services.  Unless otherwise
stated in this Agreement, the hours of Service will be 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., local time, excluding weekends and holidays.  Unless otherwise stated in this
Agreement, the price for the Services exclude any charges or expenses associated with helicopter or other unusual access requirements; if these charges or
expenses are reasonably incurred by Motorola in rendering the Services, Customer agrees to reimburse Motorola for those charges and expenses.
 
Section 7. CUSTOMER CONTACT
 Customer will provide Motorola with designated points of contact (list of names and phone numbers) that will be available twenty-four (24) hours per day,
seven (7) days per week, and an escalation procedure to enable Customer’s personnel to maintain contact, as needed, with Motorola.
 
Section 8. INVOICING AND PAYMENT
8.1     Customer affirms that a purchase order or notice to proceed is not required for the duration of this service contract and will appropriate funds each
year through the contract end date. Unless alternative payment terms are stated in this Agreement, Motorola will invoice Customer in advance for each
payment period. All other charges will be billed monthly, and Customer must pay each invoice in U.S. dollars within twenty (20) days of the invoice date
 
8.2      Customer will reimburse Motorola for all property taxes, sales and use taxes, excise taxes, and other taxes or assessments that are levied as a result
of Services rendered under this Agreement (except income, profit, and franchise taxes of Motorola) by any governmental entity. The Customer will pay all
invoices as received from Motorola. At the time of execution of this Agreement, the Customer will provide all necessary reference information to include on
invoices for payment in accordance with this Agreement.
 
8.3       For multi-year service agreements, at the end of the first year of the Agreement and each year thereafter, a CPI percentage change calculation shall
be performed using the U.S.Department of Labor, Consumer Price Index, all Items, Unadjusted Urban Areas (CPI-U).  Should the annual inflation rate
increase greater than 3% during the previous year, Motorola shall have the right to increase all future maintenance prices by the CPI increase amount
exceeding 3%.   All items, not seasonally adjusted shall be used as the measure of CPI for this price adjustment. Measurement will take place once the
annual average for the new year has been posted by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. For purposes of illustration, if in year 5 the CPI reported an increase of
8%, Motorola may increase the Year 6 price by 5% (8%-3% base).
 
Section 9. WARRANTY
 Motorola warrants that its Services under this Agreement will be free of defects in materials and workmanship for a period of ninety (90) days from the date
the performance of the Services are completed.  In the event of a breach of this warranty, Customer’s sole remedy is to require Motorola to re-perform the
non-conforming Service or to refund, on a pro-rata basis, the fees paid for the non-conforming Service.  MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE.
 
 
Section 10. DEFAULT/TERMINATION
10.1     If either party defaults in the performance of this Agreement, the other party will give to the non-performing party a written and detailed notice of the
default.  The non-performing party will have thirty (30) days thereafter to provide a written plan to cure the default that is acceptable to the other party and
begin implementing the cure plan immediately after plan approval.  If the non-performing party fails to provide or implement the cure plan, then the injured
party, in addition to any other rights available to it under law, may immediately terminate this Agreement effective upon giving a written notice of termination
to the defaulting party.
 
10.2    Any termination of this Agreement will not relieve either party of obligations previously incurred pursuant to this Agreement, including payments which
may be due and owing at the time of termination.  All sums owed by Customer to Motorola will become due and payable immediately upon termination of
this Agreement.  Upon the effective date of termination, Motorola will have no further obligation to provide Services.
 
10.3     If the Customer terminates this Agreement before the end of the Term, for any reason other than Motorola default, then the Customer will pay to
Motorola an early termination fee equal to the discount applied to the last three (3) years of Service payments for the original Term. 
 

 

 

SERVICE AGREEMENT
 

500 W Monroe Street
Chicago, IL. 60661
(888) 325-9336
 

 

Quote Number    : QUOTE-3035403 
Contract Number:  USC000602956
Contract Modifier:  R06-MAR-2025 19:31:42 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

614



Section 11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
Except for personal injury or death, Motorola's total liability, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict liability in tort, or otherwise, will be
limited to the direct damages recoverable under law, but not to exceed the price of twelve (12) months of Service provided under this Agreement. 
ALTHOUGH THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES, THEY AGREE THAT MOTOROLA WILL NOT BE
LIABLE FOR ANY COMMERCIAL LOSS; INCONVENIENCE; LOSS OF USE, TIME, DATA, GOOD WILL, REVENUES, PROFITS OR SAVINGS; OR
OTHER SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES IN ANY WAY RELATED TO OR ARISING FROM THIS AGREEMENT OR
THE PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES BY MOTOROLA PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.  No action for contract breach or otherwise relating to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement may be brought more than one (1) year after the accrual of the cause of action, except for money due upon an
open account.  This limitation of liability will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement and applies notwithstanding any contrary provision.
 
Section 12. EXCLUSIVE TERMS AND CONDITIONS
 12.1     This Agreement supersedes all prior and concurrent agreements and understandings between the parties, whether written or oral, related to the
Services, and there are no agreements or representations concerning the subject matter of this Agreement except for those expressed herein.  The
Agreement may not be amended or modified except by a written agreement signed by authorized representatives of both parties.
 
12.2     Customer agrees to reference this Agreement on any purchase order issued in furtherance of this Agreement, however, an omission of the reference
to this Agreement will not affect its applicability.  In no event will either party be bound by any terms contained in a Customer purchase order,
acknowledgement, or other writings unless: the purchase order, acknowledgement, or other writing specifically refers to this Agreement; clearly indicate the
intention of both parties to override and modify this Agreement; and the purchase order, acknowledgement, or other writing is signed by authorized
representatives of both parties.
 
Section 13. PROPRIETARY INFORMATION; CONFIDENTIALITY; INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS
13.1    Any information or data in the form of specifications, drawings, reprints, technical information or otherwise furnished to Customer under this
Agreement will remain Motorola’s property, will be deemed proprietary, will be kept confidential, and will be promptly returned at Motorola's request. 
Customer may not disclose, without Motorola's written permission or as required by law, any confidential information or data to any person, or use
confidential information or data for any purpose other than performing its obligations under this Agreement.  The obligations set forth in this Section survive
the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
 
13.2    Unless otherwise agreed in writing, no commercial or technical information disclosed in any manner or at any time by Customer to Motorola will be
deemed secret or confidential.  Motorola will have no obligation to provide Customer with access to its confidential and proprietary information, including cost
and pricing data.
 
13.3    This Agreement does not grant directly or by implication, estoppel, or otherwise, any ownership right or license under any Motorola patent, copyright,
trade secret, or other intellectual property, including any intellectual property created as a result of or related to the Equipment sold or Services performed
under this Agreement.
 
Section 14. FCC LICENSES AND OTHER AUTHORIZATIONS
Customer is solely responsible for obtaining licenses or other authorizations required by the Federal Communications Commission or any other federal,
state, or local government agency and for complying with all rules and regulations required by governmental agencies.  Neither Motorola nor any of its
employees is an agent or representative of Customer in any governmental matters.
 
Section 15. COVENANT NOT TO EMPLOY
During the term of this Agreement and continuing for a period of two (2) years thereafter, Customer will not hire, engage on contract, solicit the employment
of, or recommend employment to any third party of any employee of Motorola or its subcontractors without the prior written authorization of Motorola.  This
provision applies only to those employees of Motorola or its subcontractors who are responsible for rendering services under this Agreement.  If this
provision is found to be overly broad under applicable law, it will be modified as necessary to conform to applicable law.
 
Section 16. MATERIALS, TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT
All tools, equipment, dies, gauges, models, drawings or other materials paid for or furnished by Motorola for the purpose of this Agreement will be and
remain the sole property of Motorola.  Customer will safeguard all such property while it is in Customer’s custody or control, be liable for any loss or damage
to this property, and return it to Motorola upon request.  This property will be held by Customer for Motorola’s use without charge and may be removed from
Customer’s premises by Motorola at any time without restriction.
 
Section 17. GENERAL TERMS
17.1      If any court renders any portion of this Agreement unenforceable, the remaining terms will continue in full force and effect.
 

 

 

SERVICE AGREEMENT
 

500 W Monroe Street
Chicago, IL. 60661
(888) 325-9336
 

 

Quote Number    : QUOTE-3035403 
Contract Number:  USC000602956
Contract Modifier:  R06-MAR-2025 19:31:42 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

615



17.2     This Agreement and the rights and duties of the parties will be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State in which the Services are
performed.
 
17.3     Failure to exercise any right will not operate as a waiver of that right, power, or privilege.
 
17.4     Neither party is liable for delays or lack of performance resulting from any causes that are beyond that party’s reasonable control, such as strikes,
material shortages, or acts of God.
 
17.5     Motorola may subcontract any of the work, but subcontracting will not relieve Motorola of its duties under this Agreement. 
 
17.6     Except as provided herein, neither Party may assign this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of
the other Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.  Any attempted assignment, delegation, or transfer without the necessary consent will be
void.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Motorola may assign this Agreement to any of its affiliates or its right to receive payment without the prior consent of
Customer. In addition, in the event Motorola separates one or more of its businesses (each a “Separated Business”), whether by way of a sale,
establishment of a joint venture, spin-off or otherwise (each a “Separation Event”), Motorola may, without the prior written consent of the other Party and at
no additional cost to Motorola, assign this Agreement such that it will continue to benefit the Separated Business and its affiliates (and Motorola and its
affiliates, to the extent applicable) following the Separation Event.
 
17.7     THIS AGREEMENT WILL RENEW, FOR AN ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERM, ON EVERY ANNIVERSARY OF THE START DATE UNLESS
EITHER THE COVER PAGE SPECIFICALLY STATES A TERMINATION DATE OR ONE PARTY NOTIFIES THE OTHER IN WRITING OF ITS INTENTION
TO DISCONTINUE THE AGREEMENT NOT LESS THAN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF THAT ANNIVERSARY DATE.  At the anniversary date, Motorola may
adjust the price of the Services to reflect its current rates.
 
17.8     If Motorola provides Services after the termination or expiration of this Agreement, the terms and conditions in effect at the time of the termination or
expiration will apply to those Services and Customer agrees to pay for those services on a time and materials basis at Motorola’s then effective hourly rates.
 
17.9     This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered part of the Agreement. The parties may execute this
Agreement in writing, or by electronic signature, and any such electronic signature shall have the same legal effect as a handwritten signature for the
purposes of validity, enforceability and admissibility. In addition, an electronic signature, a true and correct facsimile copy or computer image of this
Agreement shall be treated as and shall have the same effect as an original signed copy of this document.
 
 Revised Sept 03, 2022

 

 

SERVICE AGREEMENT
 

500 W Monroe Street
Chicago, IL. 60661
(888) 325-9336
 

 

Quote Number    : QUOTE-3035403 
Contract Number:  USC000602956
Contract Modifier:  R06-MAR-2025 19:31:42 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

616



Cybersecurity Online Terms Acknowledgement 
 
This Cybersecurity Online Terms Acknowledgement (this “Acknowledgement”) is entered into between Motorola Solutions, Inc. (“Motorola”) and the entity set
forth in the signature block below (“Customer”).
 
1. Applicability and Self Deletion. This Cybersecurity Online Terms Acknowledgement applies to the extent cybersecurity products and services, including
Remote Security Update Service, Security Update Service, and Managed Detection & Response subscription services, are purchased by or otherwise
provided to Customer, including through bundled or integrated offerings or otherwise.
NOTE: This Acknowledgement is self deleting if not applicable under this Section 1.
 
2. Online Terms Acknowledgement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the terms of the Cyber Subscription Renewals and Integrations
Addendum available at http://www.motorolasolutions.com/cyber-renewals-integrations are incorporated in and form part of the Parties’ agreement as it
relates to any cybersecurity products or services sold or provided to Customer. By signing the signature block below, Customer certifies that it has read and
agrees to the provisions set forth and linked on-line in this Acknowledgement. To the extent Customer is unable to access the above referenced online terms
for any reason, Customer may request a paper copy from Motorola. The signatory to this Acknowledgement represents and warrants that he or she has the
requisite authority to bind Customer to this Acknowledgement and referenced online terms.
 
3. Entire Agreement. This Acknowledgement supplements any and all applicable and existing agreements and supersedes any contrary terms as it relates to
Customer's purchase of cybersecurity products and services. This Acknowledgement and referenced terms constitute the entire agreement of the parties
regarding the subject matter hereof and as set out in the referenced terms, and supersedes all previous agreements, proposals, and understandings,
whether written or oral, relating to this subject matter.
 
4. Execution and Amendments. This Acknowledgement may be executed in multiple counterparts, and will have the same legal force and effect as if the
Parties had executed it as a single document. The Parties may sign in writing or by electronic signature. An electronic signature, facsimile copy, or computer
image of a signature, will be treated, and will have the same effect as an original signature, and will have the same effect, as an original signed copy of this
document. This Acknowledgement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument signed by authorized representatives of both Parties.
The Parties hereby enter into this Acknowledgement as of the last signature date below.
 
 
 
Revised Sept 03, 2022

 

 

SERVICE AGREEMENT
 

500 W Monroe Street
Chicago, IL. 60661
(888) 325-9336
 

 

Quote Number    : QUOTE-3035403 
Contract Number:  USC000602956
Contract Modifier:  R06-MAR-2025 19:31:42 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

617

http://www.motorolasolutions.com/cyber-renewals-integrations


           EXHIBIT A: System Configuration 
 

 
Customer Name: Watauga County  

Customer Number:   1036494285  

Contract Number:       USC000602956  

Start Date: 1-Jul-25 

End Date: 30-Jun-26 

System ID: SZ01FC2D20/SZ01FC2D30 

QTY Equipment Description 
 

Price 

2 Dispatch Sites 
  

8 MCC7500E Consoles   

2 AIS   

6 CCGW   

  Total $65,412.99 

 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

618



MCA Office:

Effective Date: 7/1/2025
Customer:
Customer Address:

End Date: 6/30/2026 ("Initial Term")
Monthly Price: $3,188.39
Annual Price: $38,260.68 (State/Local taxes NOT included )

Billing Frequency: Annual

Signature: Signature:

Name(print) & Title: Name(print) & Title:

Date: Date:

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT

Charlotte, NC 

This Service Level Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by and between Mobile Communications America, Inc. a Delaware corporation (“MCA”) and the entity listed 
below as Customer (referred to herein as, “Customer”) as of the effective date listed below.

Watauga County 

WHEREAS, the undersigned (collectivey, the "Parties" and each, individually, a "Party") desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions for the 
services to be provided by MCA as it applies to maintenance service, parts and labor for the equipment and/or systems as described in Attachment A. Beginning on the 
effective date of this Agreement, MCA agrees to provide maintenance service to keep covered equipment in good working order.

Summary of Services:

By signing this Agreement, Customer agrees to accept maintenance service for the listed equipment, per Attachment A, according to the specified terms and conditions of 
the Agreement. Customer also agrees to provide full, free and safe access to the equipment and/or systems covered by this Agreement. Services provided hereunder do 
not assure uninterrupted operation of the Equipment or service and MCA is not responsible for failure to render covered service due to causes beyond its control. This 
Agreement is valid only if signed by an authorized representative or officer of MCA and Customer.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, together with the SOWs and any Attachments attached thereto, from time to time, sets forth the entire agreement and 
understanding between the Parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. No 
representations, statements, or inducements, oral or written, not contained herein shall bind either Party. This Agreement may only be amended by a written document duly 
executed between the Parties. The Customer acknowledges that the Customer has read this entire Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and 
conditions.

Customer MCA

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

619



SERVICE:  MCA will perform such repairs as may be required to restore Equipment to their normal operating level, provided that such repairs are necessitated by the failure of the 
Equipment due to normal usage. Non-fixed Equipment shall be serviced at an MCA shop during normal working hours. Travel charges and expenses incurred by MCA at the request of 
the Customer to resolve a malfunction of the Equipment that is not covered under this Agreement shall be billable to the Customer at current MCA rates. For emergency service or other 
service performed at Customer's request outside of normal working hours, for equipment not covered under this Agreement or for Equipment whose failure was due to causes not 
considered to be "normal usage," Customer will be billed for the service at the then current MCA rates for each occurrence.
PREMIER SERVICE OPTION:  If Customer has elected to purchase the Premier Service Option, emergency service is included at no additional charge per occurrence, provided that
all other terms of this Agreement are satisfied. Emergency service is provided 24 hours per day, seven days per week. Customers not electing the Premier Service Option shall pay an 
additional charge for emergency service rendered at current MCA rates for each occurrence.
UNSUPPORTED EQUIPMENT. From time to time manufacturers discontinue or cease to support equipment, which MCA cannot control . In the event that equipment covered by this
by this contract is discontinued or no longer supported by the manufacturer ("Obsolete Equipment"), MCA's recommendation is that the Obsolete Equipment be replaced. In the
event that Customer elects not to replace the Obsolete Equipment, MCA will provide its best efforts to repair and maintain the Obsolete Equipment but makes no guarantees
or warranties that the Obsolete Equipment will continue to function as intended, or that firmware updates will be available to ensure that the Obsolete Equipment can communicate 
properly with other equipment in Customer's system. In the event MCA is unable to repair the Obsolete Equipment or the cost of repair in MCA's opinion makes repairing the 
equipment impractical, MCA will notify the Customer the equipment is non-repairable and remove it from the service agreement.

PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE:  MCA will inspect the Equipment and make such repairs, adjustments, and replacements of parts and components as may be necessary to maintain 
the Equipment in normal operating condition provided that such services and maintenance are necessitated by normal usage of the Equipment. Inspections and preventive maintenance 
service will be provided by MCA during normal working hours at the locations specified. All preventive maintenance inspections will be scheduled for mutual convenience and may be 
performed during remedial service.
LIMITATIONS:  MCA reserves the right to inspect any equipment or service prior to its inclusion under the terms of this Agreement. MCA may at its sole discretion require that said 
equipment or system be restored to proper operating specifications at Customer's expense prior to its being covered under this Agreement. Should Equipment not meet specifications 
to provide service or MCA, at its sole discretion, declares Equipment to be unserviceable, MCA will provide an Exhibit outlining audit and test results. In such case, MCA’s sole 
responsibility is to remove such Equipment from the billing under this Agreement.  

REPLACEMENT PARTS:  MCA will replace parts and components of the Equipment on an exchange basis when failure is due to the normal and proper use of the Equipment. Parts or 
equipment exchanged back to MCA during maintenance service become the property of MCA.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
NORMAL WORKING HOURS:  Normal working hours shall be from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except holidays, in the time zone of the Customer location receiving the 

EXCLUDED SERVICES:  The following services are not included under the terms of this Agreement. The repair of Equipment, replacement of parts, or any additional service labor due to 
accident, abuse, disaster, neglect, misuse, physical damage, liquid damage, damage by lightning or other Acts of God, service by personnel other than those authorized by MCA, alterations, 
modifications, attachments, accessories (other than those specifically designed for use with the particular piece of Equipment), use of Equipment with unauthorized batteries and/or power 
supplies or reprogramming by other than MCA personnel. Travel charges and expenses incurred by MCA at the request of the Customer to resolve a malfunction of equipment or systems not 
covered under this Agreement shall be billable to the Customer at current MCA rates. If MCA finds that any Equipment has been altered or repaired by others, such Equipment shall not be 
covered by this Agreement and any services shall be billable to the Customer at current MCA rates.

RENEWALS: After the Initial Term, this Agreement shall automatically renew for additional one-year periods, with an annual price increase of 5%, unless Customer provides a notice of 
termination at least thirty (30) days prior to expiration of the then-current Term.

WARRANTY:  MCA warrants that it will perform the services using personnel of required skill, experience and qualifications and in a professional and workmanlike manner in accordance with 
generally recognized industry standards for similar services and shall devote adequate resources to meet its obligations under this Agreement.  EXCEPT FOR THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN 
THIS PARAGRAPH, MCA MAKES NO WARRANTY WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES, INCLUDING ANY (A) WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY; OR (B) WARRANTY 
OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE; OR (C) WARRANTY OF TITLE; OR (D) WARRANTY AGAINST INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD 
PARTY; WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY LAW, COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, USAGE OF TRADE OR OTHERWISE.

PAYMENT: Payment shall be due and payable thirty (30) days from the date of invoice. Payment shall not be withheld on account of any claim by Customer against MCA. If Customer disputes 
any portion of a MCA invoice, Customer shall pay the undisputed portion when due and the Parties shall work to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days. Nonpayment or delay in payment by 
Customer shall be considered a breach of the Agreement. If the financial condition of the Customer at any time does not, in MCA’s sole discretion, justify continuance of performance, MCA may 
require full or partial payment from the Customer in advance. In the event of bankruptcy or insolvency of the Customer, or in the event any proceedings are brought by or against the Customer 
under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws, MCA shall be entitled to cancel any Services then outstanding and shall receive reimbursement for any expenses incurred by it in connection with such 
cancellation and any applicable cancellation charges.

TAXES:  Applicable taxes will be billed to the Customer and the Customer hereby agrees to pay said taxes, unless the Customer has provided a current tax exemption certificate.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

620



CUSTOMER INSURANCE: Customer shall maintain all necessary and appropriate policies of insurance in respect of its obligations under this Agreement. Comprehensive General Liability and 
Property Insurance for liability, casualty, fire, theft, and property damage under which Customer is named as insured and which shall on a primary and non-contributing basis cover any loss or 
damage MCA’s services are intended to detect to one hundred percent of the insurable value or potential risk. The parties intend that the Customer assume all potential risk and damage that 
may arise by reason of failure of the equipment, or MCA’s services and that Customer will look to its own insurance carrier for any loss or assume the risk of loss. MCA shall not be responsible 
for any portion of any loss or damage which is recovered or recoverable by Customer from insurance covering such loss or damage or for such loss or damage against which Customer is 
indemnified or insured. Customer and all those claiming rights under Customer waive all rights against MCA and its subcontractors for loss or damages caused by perils intended to be detected 
by MCA's services or covered by insurance to be obtained by Customer, except such rights as Customer or others may have to the proceeds of insurance. Customer on its behalf and any 
insurance carrier waives any right of subrogation Customer’s insurance carrier may otherwise have against MCA or MCA’s subcontractors arising out of this Agreement or the relation of the 
parties hereto.

CUSTOMER DEFAULT: Upon any default by Customer under this Agreement, including the refusal to accept conforming Services, MCA may exercise all remedies to which MCA may be 
entitled at law or in equity, including specific performance. Additionally, MCA may declare all sums due or to become due hereunder immediately due and payable, and MCA shall be entitled to 
recover all reasonable collection costs incurred, including legal interest. In addition, for non-disputed payments not received within thirty (30) days of the invoice date, a late fee not exceeding the 
lower of one and a half percent (1.5%) per month or the maximum rate allowed by law shall be assessed on any past due invoice balance. In the event of Customer’s default, MCA shall not be 
obligated to continue performing Services hereunder. Upon Customer default, MCA may at its sole discretion suspend or cancel any outstanding, unfulfilled Services of Customer under this 
Agreement.

TERMINATION:  Customer may, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to MCA, terminate this Agreement for convenience, provided the Customer shall be liable for any third-party costs incurred 
and outstanding payments to MCA for maintenance services provided. With the exception of the Customer's liability for any and all payments outstanding under this Agreement, neither the 
Customer nor MCA shall retain any liability for any performance under this Agreement on any date following the expiration of this Agreement. 

COVENANT NOT TO SOLICIT: MCA expends considerable resources including money, time, training, etc. to properly train and educate its employees. MCA experiences considerable financial 
and other harm when its employees are recruited and hired by customers. Therefore, Customer agrees to not recruit or solicit any MCA employee during the term of this Agreement and for a 
period of two (2) years thereafter. In consideration of MCA performing its services under this Agreement, Customer acknowledges MCA’s damages in such event and agrees to pay as liquidated 
damages for breach of this Section a one-time payment equal to five hundred (500) times the then standard technician hourly billable rate, which is currently $200/hour. Customer expends 
considerable resources including money, time, training, etc. to properly train and educate its employees. Customer experiences considerable financial and other harm when its employees are 
recruited and hired by vendors. Therefore, MCA agrees to not recruit or solicit any Customer employee during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years thereafter. MCA 
acknowledges Customer's damages in such event and agrees to pay as liquidated damages for breach of this Section a one-time payment equal to five hundred (500) times the then MCA’s 
standard technician hourly billable rate, which is currently $200/hour.

MCA INSURANCE:  MCA agrees to carry $1,000,000 per occurrence general liability insurance and applicable worker's compensation insurance.

NO CHANGES:  Except as previously described, no changes, alteration or modification of this Agreement may be made without the express written consent of both parties. 
ASSIGNMENT: Customer shall not assign in whole or in part this Agreement or any interest therein or any rights hereunder without the written consent of MCA, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed. Any such assignment without consent shall be void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, MCA may assign this Agreement or any other agreement between the Parties, without 
consent in whole or in part, for the purposes of corporate reconstruction, reorganization, or analogous proceeding, or to (a) any affiliate; or (b) a third party in the event of a merger, 
recapitalization, conversion, consolidation, other business combination or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of MCA to such third party.

GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:   This Agreement is governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina without regard to its rules governing conflicts of law. 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each Party and its respective heirs, successors and assigns. Should any part of this Agreement, for any reason, be declared 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion, and such remaining portion shall remain in full force and effect. The Parties 
shall attempt to resolve all disputes arising out of this Agreement in a spirit of cooperation without formal proceedings. Any dispute which cannot be so resolved (other than the collection of 
money due on unpaid invoices) shall be subject to arbitration upon written demand of either party. Arbitration shall take place in Spartanburg, South Carolina, and shall be the exclusive forum for 
resolving the dispute, controversy, or claim. The arbitration shall take place before an arbitration panel chosen as follows: The parties shall each choose an arbitrator, and the two (2) arbitrators 
shall choose a third (3rd) arbitrator and determine the third (3rd) arbitrator’s compensation. Each party shall have one (1) veto over the choice of the third (3rd) arbitrator. The three (3) arbitrators 
shall schedule an informal proceeding, hear the arguments, and decide the matter by secret majority vote. Unless the arbitrators decide otherwise, each party shall pay the costs of its own 
arbitrator and shall pay half of the other costs of the arbitration proceeding. The award or decision of the arbitrator shall state the reasons upon which the award or decision is based and shall be 
final and binding upon the Parties. The prevailing Party shall be entitled to compensation for the expense of the arbitration, including, but not limited to, the award of attorneys’ fees, at the 
discretion of the arbitrator. The award shall be enforceable before any court of competent jurisdiction upon the application to such court by either Party. Each Party irrevocably and 
unconditionally waives any right to a trial by jury in respect to any legal action arising from this Agreement or any other agreement between the Parties.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

621



LIMITATION OF LIABILITY:  MCA SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY LOSS OF USE, REVENUE OR PROFIT, DAMAGE OR LOSS 
OF OTHER PROPERTY OR EQUIPMENT OR SYSTEMS OR FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES WERE 
FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER OR NOT MCA HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ANY AGREED 
OR OTHER REMEDY OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. THE LIABILITY OF MCA WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, INCLUDING SERVICE, SALE, 
DELIVERY, RESALE, INSTALLATION OR THE TECHNICAL DIRECTION OF INSTALLATION, REPAIR OR USE OF ANY ITEM COVERED BY OR FURNISHED HEREUNDER, 
WHETHER SUCH LIABILITIES ARE FOUNDED IN CONTRACT, IN TORT, UNDER ANY WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE PRICE PAID TO MCA WITH 
RESPECT TO THE SERVICE GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM. NO ACTION SHALL BE BROUGHT FOR ANY BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT MORE THAN ONE (1) YEAR AFTER 
THE ACCRUAL OF SUCH CAUSE OF ACTION EXCEPT FOR MONEY DUE UPON OPEN ACCOUNT.

EXCULPATORY CLAUSE: Both Parties agree that MCA is not an insurer, and no insurance coverage is offered herein. The equipment and MCA’s services are designed to detect and reduce 
certain risks of loss, though MCA does not guarantee that no loss or damage will occur. No equipment provided by MCA is represented to be medical grade, FDA approved, or intended for use 
by a healthcare professional or healthcare facility or to diagnose, treat, cure or prevent disease or medical condition unless explicitly stated in the SOW and no equipment or services are 
intended to diagnose, treat, cure, prevent, mitigate or minimize the likelihood of communicable disease, infectious agent, bacteria, virus or illness. MCA is not assuming liability, and, therefore, 
Customer agrees MCA shall not be liable to Customer or any other third party, and Customer covenants not to sue MCA, for any loss, economic or non-economic, business loss or interruption, 
consequential damages, in contract or tort, data corruption or inability to retrieve data, personal injury, health condition or property damage sustained by Customer or others as a result of 
equipment failure, human error, burglary, theft, hold-up, fire, smoke, water, any communicable disease, infectious agent, bacteria, virus, illness or any other cause whatsoever, regardless of 
whether or not such loss or damage was caused by or contributed to by MCA’s breach of contract, negligent performance to any degree in furtherance of this Agreement , any extra contractual 
or legal duty, strict products liability, or negligent failure to perform any obligation pursuant to this Agreement or any other legal duty, except for gross negligence and willful misconduct.

INDEMNIFICATION: Customer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless MCA, its officers, directors, employees, and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified Party”) from and against any 
and all liabilities, losses, damages, expenses, liens, claims, demands, actions, judgments, settlements, interest, awards, penalties, fines costs, and expenses, including, without limitation, 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of collection, costs of recovering insurance, and costs of enforcing this indemnification provision (collectively “Claims”) arising out of or related to any negligent 
act or omission of the Customer in connection with the performance of the Services under each SOW . For avoidance of doubt, Customer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless MCA 
from any failure to mitigate or respond or detect any communicable disease, infectious agent, bacteria or virus.

ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  Should any dispute arise between the parties regarding the interpretation, application, effect or enforcement of the Agreement, the prevailing party in any legal or 
arbitration proceedings commenced to resolve the dispute shall be entitled to costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in said legal proceeding.

NOTICES: All notices given by one party to the other under this Agreement must be delivered by: (a) hand delivery, (b) certified mail, return receipt requested, (c) nationally recognized overnight 
courier service, or (d) facsimile, to the other party’s respective address given in the preamble to the Agreement.

SEVERABILITY: If any provision or part-provision of this Agreement is or becomes invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, it shall be deemed modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it 
valid, legal and enforceable. If such modification is not possible, the relevant provision or part-provision shall be deemed deleted. Any modification to or deletion of a provision or part-provision 

COUNTERPARTS:  The Agreement may be executed in counterparts, which together constitute one and the same agreement.  A facsimile copy or computer image, such as a PDF or tiff image, 
of a signature shall be treated as and shall have the same effect as an original signature.  In addition, a true and correct facsimile copy or computer image of the Agreement shall be treated as 
and shall have the same effect as an original signed copy of this document.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

622



Special Instructions

Equipment and Coverage Details  -   Attachment A

Repeater 12
Channel 5 Base 1
Battery Chargers for Repeater 2
Control Station 17
Consolettes 15
Tone Remote 1
XTL Mobile (Viper Rescue) 1
Tone Remote Adapter 2

Best Effort Provided on Unsupported Equipment

4-Hour Onsite Response Time for Emergency Failures 24/7

Annual Preventative Maintenance Inspection 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

623



Subscriber support includes repair.  It is the customer’s responsibility to get the subscriber 
to their local MCA facility and ensure MCA has the current programming files on hand.  It is 

MCA’s responsibility to:
• Triage the device

• Ship to the depot if repair cannot be addressed locally
• Track repair status

• Receive the device back from the depot
• Confirm that the radio has been repaired and is programmed to the customer’s 

specifications
• Communicate to the customer their device is fixed.  

Infrastructure support includes 24 x 7 response to all issues arising from infrastructure, 
infrastructure cabling and antenna systems.  Issues that result from power failure, force 

majeure, or tampering are excluded from this service.  Removal of infrastructure equipment 
for warranty repair is the responsibility of MCA.  Repair of cabling and antenna systems is 
not a part of this service.  After hours support is available upon request but is not covered 

under this service.  Additional charges would apply at after hour rates.

One annual Preventative Maintenance check of the covered equipment.  Subscriber 
Preventative Maintenance includes but not limited to visual inspection of radio, realignment 

back to factory specifications (transmit power out, transmit frequency error, transmit 
deviation, and receive sensitivity), and check of battery date code.

One annual firmware update of the covered equipment will be completed at the time of the 
preventative maintenance check.

Subscriber support includes repair.  It is the customer’s responsibility to get the subscriber to their 
local MCA facility and ensure MCA has the current programming files on hand.  It is MCA’s 

responsibility to:
• Triage the device

• Ship to the depot if repair cannot be addressed locally
• Track repair status

• Receive the device back from the depot
• Confirm that the radio has been repaired and is programmed to the customer’s specifications

• Communicate to the customer their device is fixed.  

Infrastructure support includes M-F 8X5 response to all issues arising from infrastructure, 
infrastructure cabling and antenna systems.  Issues that result from power failure, force majeure, or 
tampering are excluded from this service.  Removal of infrastructure equipment for warranty repair is 
the responsibility of MCA.  Repair of cabling and antenna systems is not a part of this service.  After 

hours support is available upon request but is not covered under this service.  Additional charges 
would apply at after hour rates.

One annual Preventative Maintenance check of the covered equipment.  Subscriber Preventative 
Maintenance includes but not limited to visual inspection of radio, realignment back to factory 
specifications (transmit power out, transmit frequency error, transmit deviation, and receive 

sensitivity), and check of battery date code.

One annual firmware update of the covered equipment will be completed at the time of the 
preventative maintenance check.

Statements of Work  -   Attachment B

MCA 8 x 5 Coverage MCA 24 x 7 Coverage

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

624



MCA Office:

Effective Date: 7/1/2025
Customer:
Customer Address:

End Date: 6/30/2026 ("Initial Term")
Monthly Price: $653.22
Annual Price: $7,838.64 (State/Local taxes NOT included )

Billing Frequency: Annual

Signature: Signature:

Name(print) & Title: Name(print) & Title:

Date: Date:

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT

Charlotte, NC 

This Service Level Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by and between Mobile Communications America, Inc. a Delaware corporation (“MCA”) and the entity listed 
below as Customer (referred to herein as, “Customer”) as of the effective date listed below.

Watauga County 

WHEREAS, the undersigned (collectivey, the "Parties" and each, individually, a "Party") desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions for the 
services to be provided by MCA as it applies to maintenance service, parts and labor for the equipment and/or systems as described in Attachment A. Beginning on the 
effective date of this Agreement, MCA agrees to provide maintenance service to keep covered equipment in good working order.

Summary of Services:

By signing this Agreement, Customer agrees to accept maintenance service for the listed equipment, per Attachment A, according to the specified terms and conditions of 
the Agreement. Customer also agrees to provide full, free and safe access to the equipment and/or systems covered by this Agreement. Services provided hereunder do 
not assure uninterrupted operation of the Equipment or service and MCA is not responsible for failure to render covered service due to causes beyond its control. This 
Agreement is valid only if signed by an authorized representative or officer of MCA and Customer.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, together with the SOWs and any Attachments attached thereto, from time to time, sets forth the entire agreement and 
understanding between the Parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. No 
representations, statements, or inducements, oral or written, not contained herein shall bind either Party. This Agreement may only be amended by a written document duly 
executed between the Parties. The Customer acknowledges that the Customer has read this entire Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and 
conditions.

Customer MCA

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

625



SERVICE:  MCA will perform such repairs as may be required to restore Equipment to their normal operating level, provided that such repairs are necessitated by the failure of the 
Equipment due to normal usage. Non-fixed Equipment shall be serviced at an MCA shop during normal working hours. Travel charges and expenses incurred by MCA at the request of 
the Customer to resolve a malfunction of the Equipment that is not covered under this Agreement shall be billable to the Customer at current MCA rates. For emergency service or other 
service performed at Customer's request outside of normal working hours, for equipment not covered under this Agreement or for Equipment whose failure was due to causes not 
considered to be "normal usage," Customer will be billed for the service at the then current MCA rates for each occurrence.
PREMIER SERVICE OPTION:  If Customer has elected to purchase the Premier Service Option, emergency service is included at no additional charge per occurrence, provided that
all other terms of this Agreement are satisfied. Emergency service is provided 24 hours per day, seven days per week. Customers not electing the Premier Service Option shall pay an 
additional charge for emergency service rendered at current MCA rates for each occurrence.
UNSUPPORTED EQUIPMENT. From time to time manufacturers discontinue or cease to support equipment, which MCA cannot control . In the event that equipment covered by this
by this contract is discontinued or no longer supported by the manufacturer ("Obsolete Equipment"), MCA's recommendation is that the Obsolete Equipment be replaced. In the
event that Customer elects not to replace the Obsolete Equipment, MCA will provide its best efforts to repair and maintain the Obsolete Equipment but makes no guarantees
or warranties that the Obsolete Equipment will continue to function as intended, or that firmware updates will be available to ensure that the Obsolete Equipment can communicate 
properly with other equipment in Customer's system. In the event MCA is unable to repair the Obsolete Equipment or the cost of repair in MCA's opinion makes repairing the 
equipment impractical, MCA will notify the Customer the equipment is non-repairable and remove it from the service agreement.

PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE:  MCA will inspect the Equipment and make such repairs, adjustments, and replacements of parts and components as may be necessary to maintain 
the Equipment in normal operating condition provided that such services and maintenance are necessitated by normal usage of the Equipment. Inspections and preventive maintenance 
service will be provided by MCA during normal working hours at the locations specified. All preventive maintenance inspections will be scheduled for mutual convenience and may be 
performed during remedial service.
LIMITATIONS:  MCA reserves the right to inspect any equipment or service prior to its inclusion under the terms of this Agreement. MCA may at its sole discretion require that said 
equipment or system be restored to proper operating specifications at Customer's expense prior to its being covered under this Agreement. Should Equipment not meet specifications 
to provide service or MCA, at its sole discretion, declares Equipment to be unserviceable, MCA will provide an Exhibit outlining audit and test results. In such case, MCA’s sole 
responsibility is to remove such Equipment from the billing under this Agreement.  

REPLACEMENT PARTS:  MCA will replace parts and components of the Equipment on an exchange basis when failure is due to the normal and proper use of the Equipment. Parts or 
equipment exchanged back to MCA during maintenance service become the property of MCA.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
NORMAL WORKING HOURS:  Normal working hours shall be from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except holidays, in the time zone of the Customer location receiving the 

EXCLUDED SERVICES:  The following services are not included under the terms of this Agreement. The repair of Equipment, replacement of parts, or any additional service labor due to 
accident, abuse, disaster, neglect, misuse, physical damage, liquid damage, damage by lightning or other Acts of God, service by personnel other than those authorized by MCA, alterations, 
modifications, attachments, accessories (other than those specifically designed for use with the particular piece of Equipment), use of Equipment with unauthorized batteries and/or power 
supplies or reprogramming by other than MCA personnel. Travel charges and expenses incurred by MCA at the request of the Customer to resolve a malfunction of equipment or systems not 
covered under this Agreement shall be billable to the Customer at current MCA rates. If MCA finds that any Equipment has been altered or repaired by others, such Equipment shall not be 
covered by this Agreement and any services shall be billable to the Customer at current MCA rates.

RENEWALS: After the Initial Term, this Agreement shall automatically renew for additional one-year periods, with an annual price increase of 5%, unless Customer provides a notice of 
termination at least thirty (30) days prior to expiration of the then-current Term.

WARRANTY:  MCA warrants that it will perform the services using personnel of required skill, experience and qualifications and in a professional and workmanlike manner in accordance with 
generally recognized industry standards for similar services and shall devote adequate resources to meet its obligations under this Agreement.  EXCEPT FOR THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN 
THIS PARAGRAPH, MCA MAKES NO WARRANTY WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES, INCLUDING ANY (A) WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY; OR (B) WARRANTY 
OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE; OR (C) WARRANTY OF TITLE; OR (D) WARRANTY AGAINST INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD 
PARTY; WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY LAW, COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, USAGE OF TRADE OR OTHERWISE.

PAYMENT: Payment shall be due and payable thirty (30) days from the date of invoice. Payment shall not be withheld on account of any claim by Customer against MCA. If Customer disputes 
any portion of a MCA invoice, Customer shall pay the undisputed portion when due and the Parties shall work to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days. Nonpayment or delay in payment by 
Customer shall be considered a breach of the Agreement. If the financial condition of the Customer at any time does not, in MCA’s sole discretion, justify continuance of performance, MCA may 
require full or partial payment from the Customer in advance. In the event of bankruptcy or insolvency of the Customer, or in the event any proceedings are brought by or against the Customer 
under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws, MCA shall be entitled to cancel any Services then outstanding and shall receive reimbursement for any expenses incurred by it in connection with such 
cancellation and any applicable cancellation charges.

TAXES:  Applicable taxes will be billed to the Customer and the Customer hereby agrees to pay said taxes, unless the Customer has provided a current tax exemption certificate.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

626



CUSTOMER INSURANCE: Customer shall maintain all necessary and appropriate policies of insurance in respect of its obligations under this Agreement. Comprehensive General Liability and 
Property Insurance for liability, casualty, fire, theft, and property damage under which Customer is named as insured and which shall on a primary and non-contributing basis cover any loss or 
damage MCA’s services are intended to detect to one hundred percent of the insurable value or potential risk. The parties intend that the Customer assume all potential risk and damage that 
may arise by reason of failure of the equipment, or MCA’s services and that Customer will look to its own insurance carrier for any loss or assume the risk of loss. MCA shall not be responsible 
for any portion of any loss or damage which is recovered or recoverable by Customer from insurance covering such loss or damage or for such loss or damage against which Customer is 
indemnified or insured. Customer and all those claiming rights under Customer waive all rights against MCA and its subcontractors for loss or damages caused by perils intended to be detected 
by MCA's services or covered by insurance to be obtained by Customer, except such rights as Customer or others may have to the proceeds of insurance. Customer on its behalf and any 
insurance carrier waives any right of subrogation Customer’s insurance carrier may otherwise have against MCA or MCA’s subcontractors arising out of this Agreement or the relation of the 
parties hereto.

CUSTOMER DEFAULT: Upon any default by Customer under this Agreement, including the refusal to accept conforming Services, MCA may exercise all remedies to which MCA may be 
entitled at law or in equity, including specific performance. Additionally, MCA may declare all sums due or to become due hereunder immediately due and payable, and MCA shall be entitled to 
recover all reasonable collection costs incurred, including legal interest. In addition, for non-disputed payments not received within thirty (30) days of the invoice date, a late fee not exceeding the 
lower of one and a half percent (1.5%) per month or the maximum rate allowed by law shall be assessed on any past due invoice balance. In the event of Customer’s default, MCA shall not be 
obligated to continue performing Services hereunder. Upon Customer default, MCA may at its sole discretion suspend or cancel any outstanding, unfulfilled Services of Customer under this 
Agreement.

TERMINATION:  Customer may, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to MCA, terminate this Agreement for convenience, provided the Customer shall be liable for any third-party costs incurred 
and outstanding payments to MCA for maintenance services provided. With the exception of the Customer's liability for any and all payments outstanding under this Agreement, neither the 
Customer nor MCA shall retain any liability for any performance under this Agreement on any date following the expiration of this Agreement. 

COVENANT NOT TO SOLICIT: MCA expends considerable resources including money, time, training, etc. to properly train and educate its employees. MCA experiences considerable financial 
and other harm when its employees are recruited and hired by customers. Therefore, Customer agrees to not recruit or solicit any MCA employee during the term of this Agreement and for a 
period of two (2) years thereafter. In consideration of MCA performing its services under this Agreement, Customer acknowledges MCA’s damages in such event and agrees to pay as liquidated 
damages for breach of this Section a one-time payment equal to five hundred (500) times the then standard technician hourly billable rate, which is currently $200/hour. Customer expends 
considerable resources including money, time, training, etc. to properly train and educate its employees. Customer experiences considerable financial and other harm when its employees are 
recruited and hired by vendors. Therefore, MCA agrees to not recruit or solicit any Customer employee during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years thereafter. MCA 
acknowledges Customer's damages in such event and agrees to pay as liquidated damages for breach of this Section a one-time payment equal to five hundred (500) times the then MCA’s 
standard technician hourly billable rate, which is currently $200/hour.

MCA INSURANCE:  MCA agrees to carry $1,000,000 per occurrence general liability insurance and applicable worker's compensation insurance.

NO CHANGES:  Except as previously described, no changes, alteration or modification of this Agreement may be made without the express written consent of both parties. 
ASSIGNMENT: Customer shall not assign in whole or in part this Agreement or any interest therein or any rights hereunder without the written consent of MCA, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed. Any such assignment without consent shall be void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, MCA may assign this Agreement or any other agreement between the Parties, without 
consent in whole or in part, for the purposes of corporate reconstruction, reorganization, or analogous proceeding, or to (a) any affiliate; or (b) a third party in the event of a merger, 
recapitalization, conversion, consolidation, other business combination or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of MCA to such third party.

GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:   This Agreement is governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina without regard to its rules governing conflicts of law. 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each Party and its respective heirs, successors and assigns. Should any part of this Agreement, for any reason, be declared 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion, and such remaining portion shall remain in full force and effect. The Parties 
shall attempt to resolve all disputes arising out of this Agreement in a spirit of cooperation without formal proceedings. Any dispute which cannot be so resolved (other than the collection of 
money due on unpaid invoices) shall be subject to arbitration upon written demand of either party. Arbitration shall take place in Spartanburg, South Carolina, and shall be the exclusive forum for 
resolving the dispute, controversy, or claim. The arbitration shall take place before an arbitration panel chosen as follows: The parties shall each choose an arbitrator, and the two (2) arbitrators 
shall choose a third (3rd) arbitrator and determine the third (3rd) arbitrator’s compensation. Each party shall have one (1) veto over the choice of the third (3rd) arbitrator. The three (3) arbitrators 
shall schedule an informal proceeding, hear the arguments, and decide the matter by secret majority vote. Unless the arbitrators decide otherwise, each party shall pay the costs of its own 
arbitrator and shall pay half of the other costs of the arbitration proceeding. The award or decision of the arbitrator shall state the reasons upon which the award or decision is based and shall be 
final and binding upon the Parties. The prevailing Party shall be entitled to compensation for the expense of the arbitration, including, but not limited to, the award of attorneys’ fees, at the 
discretion of the arbitrator. The award shall be enforceable before any court of competent jurisdiction upon the application to such court by either Party. Each Party irrevocably and 
unconditionally waives any right to a trial by jury in respect to any legal action arising from this Agreement or any other agreement between the Parties.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

627



LIMITATION OF LIABILITY:  MCA SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY LOSS OF USE, REVENUE OR PROFIT, DAMAGE OR LOSS 
OF OTHER PROPERTY OR EQUIPMENT OR SYSTEMS OR FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES WERE 
FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER OR NOT MCA HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ANY AGREED 
OR OTHER REMEDY OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. THE LIABILITY OF MCA WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, INCLUDING SERVICE, SALE, 
DELIVERY, RESALE, INSTALLATION OR THE TECHNICAL DIRECTION OF INSTALLATION, REPAIR OR USE OF ANY ITEM COVERED BY OR FURNISHED HEREUNDER, 
WHETHER SUCH LIABILITIES ARE FOUNDED IN CONTRACT, IN TORT, UNDER ANY WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE PRICE PAID TO MCA WITH 
RESPECT TO THE SERVICE GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM. NO ACTION SHALL BE BROUGHT FOR ANY BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT MORE THAN ONE (1) YEAR AFTER 
THE ACCRUAL OF SUCH CAUSE OF ACTION EXCEPT FOR MONEY DUE UPON OPEN ACCOUNT.

EXCULPATORY CLAUSE: Both Parties agree that MCA is not an insurer, and no insurance coverage is offered herein. The equipment and MCA’s services are designed to detect and reduce 
certain risks of loss, though MCA does not guarantee that no loss or damage will occur. No equipment provided by MCA is represented to be medical grade, FDA approved, or intended for use 
by a healthcare professional or healthcare facility or to diagnose, treat, cure or prevent disease or medical condition unless explicitly stated in the SOW and no equipment or services are 
intended to diagnose, treat, cure, prevent, mitigate or minimize the likelihood of communicable disease, infectious agent, bacteria, virus or illness. MCA is not assuming liability, and, therefore, 
Customer agrees MCA shall not be liable to Customer or any other third party, and Customer covenants not to sue MCA, for any loss, economic or non-economic, business loss or interruption, 
consequential damages, in contract or tort, data corruption or inability to retrieve data, personal injury, health condition or property damage sustained by Customer or others as a result of 
equipment failure, human error, burglary, theft, hold-up, fire, smoke, water, any communicable disease, infectious agent, bacteria, virus, illness or any other cause whatsoever, regardless of 
whether or not such loss or damage was caused by or contributed to by MCA’s breach of contract, negligent performance to any degree in furtherance of this Agreement , any extra contractual 
or legal duty, strict products liability, or negligent failure to perform any obligation pursuant to this Agreement or any other legal duty, except for gross negligence and willful misconduct.

INDEMNIFICATION: Customer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless MCA, its officers, directors, employees, and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified Party”) from and against any 
and all liabilities, losses, damages, expenses, liens, claims, demands, actions, judgments, settlements, interest, awards, penalties, fines costs, and expenses, including, without limitation, 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of collection, costs of recovering insurance, and costs of enforcing this indemnification provision (collectively “Claims”) arising out of or related to any negligent 
act or omission of the Customer in connection with the performance of the Services under each SOW . For avoidance of doubt, Customer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless MCA 
from any failure to mitigate or respond or detect any communicable disease, infectious agent, bacteria or virus.

ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  Should any dispute arise between the parties regarding the interpretation, application, effect or enforcement of the Agreement, the prevailing party in any legal or 
arbitration proceedings commenced to resolve the dispute shall be entitled to costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in said legal proceeding.

NOTICES: All notices given by one party to the other under this Agreement must be delivered by: (a) hand delivery, (b) certified mail, return receipt requested, (c) nationally recognized overnight 
courier service, or (d) facsimile, to the other party’s respective address given in the preamble to the Agreement.

SEVERABILITY: If any provision or part-provision of this Agreement is or becomes invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, it shall be deemed modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it 
valid, legal and enforceable. If such modification is not possible, the relevant provision or part-provision shall be deemed deleted. Any modification to or deletion of a provision or part-provision 

COUNTERPARTS:  The Agreement may be executed in counterparts, which together constitute one and the same agreement.  A facsimile copy or computer image, such as a PDF or tiff image, 
of a signature shall be treated as and shall have the same effect as an original signature.  In addition, a true and correct facsimile copy or computer image of the Agreement shall be treated as 
and shall have the same effect as an original signed copy of this document.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

628



Special Instructions

Equipment and Coverage Details  -   Attachment A

APX7000 15
APX8000 37
XTS2500 16
APX Mobile 10
Motorola Mobile 42

Annual Preventative Maintenance Inspection 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

629



Subscriber support includes repair.  It is the customer’s responsibility to get the subscriber 
to their local MCA facility and ensure MCA has the current programming files on hand.  It is 

MCA’s responsibility to:
• Triage the device

• Ship to the depot if repair cannot be addressed locally
• Track repair status

• Receive the device back from the depot
• Confirm that the radio has been repaired and is programmed to the customer’s 

specifications
• Communicate to the customer their device is fixed.  

Infrastructure support includes 24 x 7 response to all issues arising from infrastructure, 
infrastructure cabling and antenna systems.  Issues that result from power failure, force 

majeure, or tampering are excluded from this service.  Removal of infrastructure equipment 
for warranty repair is the responsibility of MCA.  Repair of cabling and antenna systems is 
not a part of this service.  After hours support is available upon request but is not covered 

under this service.  Additional charges would apply at after hour rates.

One annual Preventative Maintenance check of the covered equipment.  Subscriber 
Preventative Maintenance includes but not limited to visual inspection of radio, realignment 

back to factory specifications (transmit power out, transmit frequency error, transmit 
deviation, and receive sensitivity), and check of battery date code.

One annual firmware update of the covered equipment will be completed at the time of the 
preventative maintenance check.

Subscriber support includes repair.  It is the customer’s responsibility to get the subscriber to their 
local MCA facility and ensure MCA has the current programming files on hand.  It is MCA’s 

responsibility to:
• Triage the device

• Ship to the depot if repair cannot be addressed locally
• Track repair status

• Receive the device back from the depot
• Confirm that the radio has been repaired and is programmed to the customer’s specifications

• Communicate to the customer their device is fixed.  

Infrastructure support includes M-F 8X5 response to all issues arising from infrastructure, 
infrastructure cabling and antenna systems.  Issues that result from power failure, force majeure, or 
tampering are excluded from this service.  Removal of infrastructure equipment for warranty repair is 
the responsibility of MCA.  Repair of cabling and antenna systems is not a part of this service.  After 

hours support is available upon request but is not covered under this service.  Additional charges 
would apply at after hour rates.

One annual Preventative Maintenance check of the covered equipment.  Subscriber Preventative 
Maintenance includes but not limited to visual inspection of radio, realignment back to factory 
specifications (transmit power out, transmit frequency error, transmit deviation, and receive 

sensitivity), and check of battery date code.

One annual firmware update of the covered equipment will be completed at the time of the 
preventative maintenance check.

Statements of Work  -   Attachment B

MCA 8 x 5 Coverage MCA 24 x 7 Coverage

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

630



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO FIRE APPENDICES COMMITTEE 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

At the Board’s request during the previous meeting, Planning and Inspections Director Jason 
Walker followed up with the individuals nominated by the Planning Board to serve on the Fire 
Appendices Committee. All nominees representing the surveyor, engineer, developer, and at-large 
categories have confirmed their willingness to serve. A final list of recommended individuals is 
attached. One representative from each category will need to be selected. Once appointments are 
made, staff will notify the selected individuals accordingly. 

Staff seeks direction from the Board regarding appointments. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

631



WATAUGA COUNTY 
126 Poplar Grove Connector Suite 201    Boone, North Carolina 28607  (828) 265-8043 

TTY 1-800-735-2962 
Voice 1-800-735-8262 

or 711 
FAX (828) 265-8080 

Memorandum 

Date: July 30, 2025 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

Deron Geouque, County Manager 
From: Jason Walker, Director of Planning & Inspections 
Re: Fire Appendices Committee  

I have contacted the individuals nominated by the Planning Board regarding 
their willingness to serve on the Fire Appendices Committee. All have confirmed 
their interest in participating. 

Attached is the final list of recommended individuals. One member from each 
group (surveyor, engineer, developer, and at-large) will need to be selected to 
serve on the committee. 

Once the selections are made, I will notify the chosen individuals accordingly. 

Department of 
Planning & Inspections 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

632



FIRE APPENDICES COMMITTEE 
 
 
Two Commissioners 
 Braxton Eggers 
 Ronnie Marsh 
 
Two Fire Chiefs 
 Chief Matt Aldridge, Foscoe Fire Dept 
 Chief Steve Marks, Cove Creek Fire Dept (Chair of Fire Commission) 
  (Both recommended by the Watauga County Fire Commission) 
 
County Manager 
 Deron Geouque 
 
Fire Marshall 
 Shane Garland 
 
Planning Director 
 Jason Walker 
----------------------------------------------------- 
 
The individuals below have been nominated and indicated their willingness to serve on the 
committee.  At this time, we need to select one member from each category. 
 
One Surveyor 

1. Donald McNeil  
2. Rick Snyder  

 
One Engineer 

1. Patrick Warren  
2. Derek Goddard  
3. Mike Trew  

 
One Developer 

1. Todd Rice  
2. Bill Aceto  
3. Jay Harrill  

 
One At-Large Member 

1. Mike Wilson  
2. Joseph Greer  
3. Chuck Campbell  
4. Jeff Fisher 
5. George Bartholomew  

 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

633



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

634



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

SANITATION DEPARTMENT TRAILER PURCHASE REQUEST 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Operations Services Director Chris Marriott has submitted a request to purchase a 2026 Clement 
Monstar trailer for use by the Sanitation Department in hauling scrap metal for recycling. This 
trailer will replace an older, homemade unit that has become structurally unsound and unsafe for 
road use. 

Staff solicited and evaluated eight quotes from six vendors for both new and used trailers. Based 
on age, payload capacity, and overall value, staff recommends the purchase of the 2026 Clement 
Monstar from Trailer Specialist, Inc. of Concord, NC, at a cost of $88,953. The vendor has agreed 
to hold the trailer until August 6, 2025, pending Board approval. Upon purchase, the old trailer 
will be sold to a scrapyard for recycling. 

Sufficient funds are available in the FY 2026 Sanitation Department budget under. 

Board action is requested to approve the purchase of the 2026 Clement Monstar trailer in the 
amount of $88,953 from Trailer Specialist, Inc. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

635



WATAUGA COUNTY 
336 Landfill Road – Boone, NC 28607 – (828) 264-5305 

TDD 1-800-735-2962 – Voice 1-800-735-8262 – FAX (828) 264-3230 

July 23, 2025 

To: Deron Geouque, County Manager 

From: Chris Marriott, Operations Services Director 

Subject: Sanitation Equipment Purchase Request 

Please see attached quote, for procurement of a 2026 Clement Monstar Trailer for the Watauga County 
Sanitation Department.  The Monstar Trailer will be primarily utilized for hauling of scrap metal for 
recycling. This trailer will replace an old ‘homemade’ hauling trailer that has been bowed-out and is 
becoming unsafe for roadway transport.  

Staff reached out for quotes for both new and used trailers that could be utilized for hauling scrap metal. 
Six different companies were provided a total of eight (8) quotes for the purchase of a trailer suitable for 
hauling scrap metal. The Sanitation Department evaluated the following quotes for the best value to the 
department; they were ranked as follows: 

Company Product Price 
Trailer Specialist, Inc. (Concord, NC) 2026 Clement Monstar (89 yd) $88,953 
Pinnacle Trailers (Spartanburg, SC) 2023 Manac (65 yd) $65,900 
Trailer Specialist, Inc. 2016 Clement Scrapstar MK3 (64 yd) $47,000 
Trailer Specialist, Inc. 2026 Clement Scrapstar MK2 (62 yd) $86,240 
Southeast Utility Trailer (Garner, NC) 2025 MAC Hardox AR450 (109 yd) $114,303.20 
MTM (Kewanee, IL) 2022 MTM TN768 (56 yd) $55,000.00 
Benlee (Romulus, MI) 2026 Gondola (non-dump) $83,415.36 
Construction Trailer Specialists 
(Sikeston, Mo) 

2025 ScrapMaster (65 yd) $71,571 

Considering the age, payload, and price of each of the available trailers, staff recommends the 2026 
Clement Monstar. The vendor, Trailer Specialist, has agreed to hold the trailer until August 6th for board 
approval. The trailer is location in Concord, NC. Sanitation staff would be able to pick up after approval 
and the issuance of a purchase order.   

The current metal hauling trailer would be sold to the scrapyard for recycling once the new trailer is ready 
for pick up.  

Staff requests Board of Commissioner’s approval to purchase a 2026 Clement Monstar scrap trailer from 
Trailer Specialist, Inc. based in Concord, NC.  

SANITATION 
DEPARTMENT 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

636



Sufficient funds are available in the FY2026 Landfill Operations budget in the line item of Capital Outlay-
other[667420-455002] within the Sanitation Department.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.  Thank you in advance for your consideration. 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

637



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

638



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

639



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

640



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Resolution to Approve Amendment No. 2

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Finance Director Deron Geouque will present a request for the Board to approve Amendment No. 
2 to the North Carolina Cash Flow Loan Agreement and the accompanying resolution. Under the 
terms of the original agreement, any FEMA reimbursements received by the County were required 
to be remitted to the State within five business days. 

The proposed amendment modifies the repayment structure, allowing the County to repay the loan 
over a five-year period according to the original repayment schedule, rather than remitting funds 
immediately upon receipt. 

Board action is requested to approve Cash Flow Loan Amendment No. 2 and the associated 
resolution. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

641



W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
FINANCE OFFICE 

   814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
FROM: Deidre Guy, Assistant Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Cash Flow Loan Amendment no. 2  
DATE: July 18, 2025 

Attached please find the North Carolina Cash Flow Loan Amendment no. 2 and resolution. Under 
the original Cash Flow Loan Agreement, any funds received from FEMA would have to be remitted 
to the state within 5 business days. This amendment will modify the terms and would allow the 
County to repay the loans over 5 years with the original repayment schedule. 

Board approval is requested to approve the Cash Flow Loan Amendment no.2 and the resolution. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

642



This Amendment has been pre-audited as required 

by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act 

____________________________________ 

Finance Officer 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 

to 

Loan Agreement between the State of North Carolina 

(by and through the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer) 

and the County of Watauga, North Carolina 

This amendment (“Amendment”) to the above-identified agreement is hereby made and entered into by the 

State of North Carolina, by and through the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer (“NCDST”), and the 

County of Watauga, North Carolina (“Recipient”), as of the effective date established hereinbelow. 

RECITALS 

A. Pursuant to the Hurricane Helene Cash Flow Loan Program created by the North Carolina General Assembly

under the Disaster Recovery Act of 2024 – Part II, NCDST and Recipient entered the above-identified

agreement to establish terms and conditions governing NCDST’s disbursement of loan proceeds to Recipient

(the “Loan Agreement”).

B. The terms of the Loan Agreement require Recipient to seek alternative sources of funding—namely, federal

funding support, insurance proceeds, and private donations (generally, “Alternative Funding”)—to pay for the

disaster response activities on which Recipient’s loan origination was based.

C. On May 28, 2025, NCDST and Recipient entered an amendment to the Loan Agreement (“Amendment No.

1”), which permitted Recipient to receive FEMA Public Assistance Expedited Project Funding without

triggering an obligation to repay the equivalent amount of loan proceeds to NCDST immediately thereafter.

Amendment No. 1 to the Loan Agreement also eliminated the requirement that Recipient “promptly” repay

other forms of Alternative Funding upon Recipient’s receipt of such funding.

D. While Amendment No. 1 to the Loan Agreement permitted Recipient to receive FEMA Public Assistance

Expedited Project Funding without triggering an obligation to repay the equivalent amount of loan proceeds to

NCDST immediately thereafter, it did not have the effect of modifying Recipient’s repayment obligations

relative to other sources of federal funding obtained by Recipient.

E. At the time the parties entered Amendment No. 1, NCDST was unaware of certain facts and circumstances

concerning the nature and timing of the federal funding support available to Recipient, aside from FEMA Public

Assistance Expedited Project Funding.  In light of those facts and circumstances, NCDST has determined that

the provisions of the Loan Agreement requiring Recipient to repay loan proceeds within five business days each

time Recipient receives federal funding support are likely to have the unintended consequence of restricting,

rather than securing, the cashflow liquidity available to Recipient in the months and years ahead, defeating the

very purpose of the Cashflow Loan Program.

F. In light of the above, and as provided in Section 10. of the Loan Agreement (concerning amendments), NCDST

and Recipient now wish to modify those provisions of the Loan Agreement pertaining to the repayment

obligations of Recipient in connection with its receipt of federal funding generally.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

643



Page 2 of 4 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the Parties do hereby agree 

as follows:   

1. Modifications to Loan Agreement.

(a) Subsection e. to Section 3. of the Loan Agreement, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to the Loan

Agreement, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the underlined text appearing below:

e. RECIPIENT agrees to deliver repayment installments of the loan proceeds in the amounts and by the
dates set forth in the Repayment Terms recited on Page 1 above, which are hereby incorporated by
reference.  Further, RECIPIENT understands and agrees that all loan proceeds provided to
RECIPIENT under this Agreement must be repaid no later than the earlier of the following two dates:
the five-year anniversary of the Loan Date; or (b) June 30, 2030.

(b) Subsection g. to Section 3. of the Loan Agreement, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to the Loan

Agreement, is hereby amended by deleting the stricken text and inserting the underlined text appearing

below:

g. As provided in the Authorizing Act:

(i) RECIPIENT agrees to deliver repayment installments of the loan proceeds in the amounts
and by the dates set forth in the Repayment Terms recited on Page 1 above, which are hereby 
incorporated by reference. Further, RECIPIENT understands and agrees that all loan 
proceeds provided to RECIPIENT under this Agreement must be repaid no later than the 
earlier of the following two dates: (a) the five-year anniversary of the Loan Date; or (b) June 
30, 3030.RESERVED. 

(ii) RECIPIENT shall use best efforts and take all reasonable steps to obtain alternative funds
that cover the losses or needs for which the loan proceeds are being provided, including funds
from insurance policies in effect, available federal aid, and private donations. RECIPIENT
understands and agrees that the loan proceeds paid to RECIPIENT pursuant to this
Agreement are in excess of any funds received by RECIPIENT from any of the following: (a)
settlement of a claim for loss or damage covered under RECIPIENT’s applicable insurance
policy in effect; (b) federal aid; or (c) private donations.

(iii) If RECIPIENT obtains alternative funds pursuant to subdivision (ii) of this subsection g.,
then RECIPIENT shall remit such funds to NCDST in accordance with the provisions of 3.e.
above. as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, but no later than the earlier of the two
dates established in subsection e. to this Section 3. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence,
RECIPIENT shall not be required to repay to NCDST any amount in excess over the amount
of loan proceeds provided under this Agreement.

2. Effect of Amendment.

(a) Except as expressly provided herein, all terms, conditions and provisions of the Loan Agreement shall

remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and confirmed by Recipient.

(b)  This Amendment No. 2 is not intended to modify any term, condition or provision contained in any of the

loan documents associated with RECIPIENT’s Loan Agreement (the “Associated Loan Documents”).  All

terms, conditions and provisions of the Associated Loan Documents shall remain in full force and effect,

modified only to the extent necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Amendment.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

644



Page 3 of 4 

(c) On and after the effective date hereof, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, any reference to the

Loan Agreement contained in the Associated Loan Documents or in the Loan Agreement itself shall be

interpreted as a reference to the Loan Agreement as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Loan Agreement

and this Amendment No. 2 to Loan Agreement.

3. Effective Date.  The provisions of this Amendment shall become effective upon the date on which NCDST has

received the following:

(a) This Amendment, duly executed and delivered by Recipient and NCDST; and

(b) A certified copy of a resolution authorizing execution of this Amendment substantially in the form of

Exhibit A, duly executed and delivered by RECIPIENT.

4. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original

but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.  One or more counterparts of this Amendment

may be delivered by facsimile or in Portable Document Format (PDF) sent by electronic mail, with such

delivery having the same effect as delivery of an original counterpart.  Signatures provided by facsimile

transmission, in PDF sent by electronic mail, or by electronic signature such as DocuSign, shall be deemed to

be original signatures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties hereto has caused its duly authorized representative, as 

applicable, to execute this Amendment Number One as of the dates written below. 

North Carolina Department of State Treasurer County of Watauga, North Carolina 

Name: ______________________________ Name: _____________ 

Title: _______________________________ Title:        _______________ 

Signature: ___________________________ Signature: ___________________________ 

Date: _______________________________ Date: _______________________________ 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

645



Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT A 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF NORTH 

CAROLINA (BY AND THROUGH THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF STATE TREASURER) AND THE  

COUNTY OF WATAUGA, NORTH CAROLINA 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the County of Watauga (the “County) previously approved and entered into a loan agreement 

(“Loan Agreement”) and promissory note with the State of North Carolina, by and through the North Carolina 

Department of State Treasurer (“NCDST”), in connection with the Hurricane Helene Cash Flow Loan Program 

created by the North Carolina General Assembly under the Disaster Recovery Act of 2024 – Part II (Session Law 

2024-53, as amended by Session Law 2024-57); and 

WHEREAS, on May 28, 2025, NCDST and the County entered an amendment to the Loan Agreement, 

which permitted the County to receive FEMA Public Assistance Expedited Project Funding without triggering an 

obligation to repay the equivalent amount of loan proceeds to NCDST immediately thereafter; and   

WHEREAS, NCDST has since agreed to further modify the repayment terms of the Loan Agreement to 

account for the County’s receipt of “Alternative Funding” in general (as that term is defined in the Amendment), 

towards the end of maximizing the cashflow liquidity available to the County for disaster response activities in the 

months and years ahead (“Amendment No. 2 to Loan Agreement”).   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY County of Watauga, North Carolina:

1. That the Amendment No. 2 to Loan Agreement presented by the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer

is hereby approved.

2. That the Watauga  Board of County Commissioner's Chairman is authorized to execute the attached Amendment to 

Loan Agreement (or one substantially equivalent thereto) and to take such other actions as necessary to secure

disaster recovery loan funding from the State of North Carolina.

Adopted, this the ________ day of _____, _______ 

Watauga Board of County Commissioners' Chairman

By: _____________________________________ 
Braxton Eggers 
Chairman

ATTEST: 

________________________________________

Katie Hancock
Clerk 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

646

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight

Deidre.Earp
Highlight



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Proposed Human Services Parking Lot and Parking Deck Agreement with
Appalachian State University

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Appalachian State University is requesting renewal of the use agreement for the parking lot at 132 
Poplar Grove Road Connector and the parking deck at 140 N. Water Street to support pre- and 
postgame football operations. 

Two versions of the agreement have been drafted: 

• Two-Year Agreement: Term from September 6, 2025, through December 20, 2026.

• Three-Year Agreement: Term from September 6, 2025, through December 20, 2027.

Under both agreements, the University would pay the County a lump sum of $10,000 per year for 
the Human Services Lot and 50% of net revenue generated from game day parking at the parking 
deck. The University would be responsible for event security, towing unauthorized vehicles, 
providing portable restrooms, and ensuring the lots are returned to their original or better condition 
following each event. 

The primary difference between the two options is the term of the agreement. The University has 
expressed interest in a longer-term arrangement for planning purposes. 

Staff seeks Board direction. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

647



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

and 

APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

USE AGREEMENT 

THIS USE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made and entered into as of the second signature 
below (“Execution Date”) by and between Watauga County (“County”), and Appalachian State 
University, a constituent institution of the University of North Carolina (“University”). Watauga 
County and Appalachian State University may each be referred to herein individually as a 
"Party" or collectively as the "Parties."  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Appalachian State University desires to utilize the parking lot at 132 
Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking deck at 140 N. Water Street as set forth below; 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has resolved to allow Appalachian 
State University use of the parking lot at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking 
deck at 140 N. Water Street for the term set forth below; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, said 
County does hereby agree to allow University to use parking spaces marked by lines in 
paved lots in the parking lot located at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking deck 
at 140 N. Water Street, Boone, lying and being in Watauga County, North Carolina. 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement are as follows: 

1. TERM: The parking lot located at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking deck
at 140 N. Water Street shall be available to University for the pre- and postgame events
during the 2025 football season. Such dates and times shall be determined in accordance
with University's football schedule. Notice of game dates and times shall be provided to
the County prior to the event. The term of this Agreement shall extend from September
6, 2025 through December 20, 2026.

2. PAYMENTS: University shall pay to the County for the use of said lot the sum of Ten
Thousand Dollars ($10,000) in one lump sum payment, annually, for the use of the
premises. Such payment shall be made every year before the start of the first event.
Additionally, the University shall pay a License Fee of 50% of net sales to the County
from game day parking revenue generated from the parking deck at 140 N. Water
Street. License Fee from sales related to the parking deck shall be paid within 30 days
of the conclusion of each season The University shall be responsible for providing
security on the dates of use during the term of this Agreement and for removing all
unauthorized vehicles. University is responsible for ensuring that no individuals shall
enter any structures or buildings located on the premises. County shall provide a
parking pass to each individual who pays for the use of the parking facilities, which
shall include indemnification language. University shall also provide portajohns for use
at the lot on event dates.

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

648



3. USE OF PREMISES: The premises shall not be used for any illegal purposes, nor in any 
manner to create any nuisance or trespass, nor in any manner to vitiate the insurance or 
increase the rate of insurance on the premises. University agrees there shall be no 
tailgating, no consumption of alcohol, no open flame, and no picnicking at the parking lot 
located at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking deck at 140 N. Water Street. The 
University shall only use the agreed-upon space for the parking of vehicles for the football 
game festivities and for the purposes as set forth above, and shall be responsible for 
providing employees of the University who will secure the premises, the occupants, and the 
property during the time period of this Agreement and until the property is vacated by any 
and all persons, vehicles, or remnants of use by University, its sub-University, assigns and 
authorized or unauthorized users. Upon the end of this Agreement, University shall return 
the premises to an equal to or better-than condition than it was as of the start date of the 
Agreement. Specifically, the University shall be responsible for towing unauthorized users 
of the space. University shall bear the sole cost of removal and towing for any vehicle left 
on the premises at the termination of the Agreement. 

4. ALTERATIONS: The University shall not paint or decorate the premises or make any 
alterations, additions or improvements in or to the premises without the County's prior 
written consent, and then only in a workmanlike manner using materials and contractors 
approved by the County. All such work shall be done at the University's expense and at 
such times and in such manner as the County may approve. All alterations, additions, and 
improvements upon the premises, made by either the County or the University, shall 
become the property of the County and shall remain upon and become a part of the 
premises at the end of the use. 

5. INDEMNIFICATION: To the extent permitted by law, University agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless County from any liability arising from any breach of contract or any 
other action related to, or incidental to, the performance of this contract. The parties to this 
Agreement agree that nothing in this Agreement constitutes a waiver of University's 
sovereign immunity, and that University's obligations in this paragraph shall be limited to 
the extent and manner of recovery provided in North Carolina's State Tort Claims Act, N.C. 
Gen. Stat.§ 143-291, et. seq. 

6. INSURANCE: University represents and warrants that it is self-insured with respect 
to tort claims and shall remain self-insured therefor to the extent permitted by North 
Carolina law for the entire term of this Agreement. A certificate of insurance shall be 
provided to the County upon request. 

7. DESTRUCTION OF OR DAMAGES TO PREMISES: If the premises are 
destroyed by storm, fire, lightening, earthquake or other casualty, or if the spaces 
become unavailable or unusable for any reason whatsoever, this Agreement shall 
terminate as of the date of such destruction or unavailability and Agreement shall be 
accounted for as between the County and the University as of that date. If the premises 
are damaged, but not wholly destroyed by any such casualties, payment shall abate in 
such proportion as effective use of the premises has been affected. 

8. GOVERNMENT ORDERS: University agrees to comply promptly with all 
requirements of any legally constituted public authority made necessary by reason of 
University's use of the premises or any other person/entity's use of the premises on 
University's behalf. In the event a governmental authority, private action, or any other event 
occurs, which imposes a requirement upon the County, which would result in a hardship to 
County to remedy, the County may declare this Agreement void and the term of this 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

649



Agreement shall cease.  

9. EVENTS OF DEFAULT: The happening of any one or more of the following events 
(hereinafter any one of which may be refe1red to as "Event of Default") during the term of 
this Agreement, shall constitute a breach of this Agreement on the part of the University; 

(a) University fails to make payments as provided for herein; 

(b) University fails to comply with or abide by and perform any other obligation 
imposed upon University under this Agreement; or any unlawful or unauthorized 
use of the premises occurs, as set forth in paragraph above, entitled "Use of 
Premises." 

(c) A permanent receiver is appointed for University's property and such receiver is not 
removed within sixty (60) days after written notice from County to University to 
obtain such removal; 

(d) University, either voluntarily or involuntarily, takes advantage of any debt or relief 
proceedings under any present or future law, whereby the payment or any part 
thereof is, or is proposed to be reduced or payment thereof deferred; 

(e) University makes an assignment for benefit of creditors; 

(f) Any other violation of the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

 

10. TERMINATION: Either Party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement at 
any time, and for any reason, by providing thirty (30) days notice to the other party.  

11. COUNTY'S ENTRY OF PREMISES: At any time during University's use, 
County or any representative of County may enter the premises to inspect the 
premises, exhibit it to prospective University/Purchasers, and to make repairs. 

12. NOTICES: All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered to or sent by U.S. certified mail, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices to University shall be delivered or sent 
to the address shown at the beginning of this Agreement with a copy sent to 
Appalachian State University, Office of General Counsel, Attn: General Counsel, 
ASU Box 32126, Boone, North Carolina 28608-2126. 

13. NO BAILMENT CREATED: No bailment is created by this agreement, and 
County assumes no liability, whatsoever, for any vehicle, any person located 
therein, any personal property on the premises, or any item in a vehicle, or any 
person being in or parked on the premises except to the extent that any such 
damage or injury occurs due to the negligence or intentional acts of County or 
its officers, employees or agents. Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a 
waiver of the County's governmental immunity. 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the 
parties hereto, and no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, 
oral or otherwise, between the parties, not embodied herein shall be of any force 
or effect. This Agreement may not be modified except by a writing signed by 
all of the parties hereto. This Agreement shall supersede any prior agreement 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

650



made between the parties, relating to the subject matter of this agreement, 
whether oral or in writing. 

 

15. NONWAIVER: Failure of the County to insist upon strict compliance with the 
Agreement at any point shall not be construed as a waiver of any terms 
contained in his Agreement or prohibit full enforcement of the rights contained 
in the Agreement herein. 

16. ASSIGNMENT: The University shall not assign this Agreement or sublet the 
premises in whole or in part. 

17. GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS: 

(a) No boats, trailers, or campers shall be parked in the parking area; 

(b) No trash or personal property shall be left on the property. 
University Agreements the spaces as designated herein only. Any 
trash, vehicles or personal property left on the premises will be 
removed at the University's expense. 

(c) Portable toilet facilities shall be provided by the University at its sole 
expense in both parking lot locations in amounts sufficient for the 
comfort of those utilizing the premises.  

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the said parties of the first and second part herein, have 
hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals, the day and year first above written. 

 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY    APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY  

 

 

_______________________________  ____________________________________ 

By: Deron Geouque    By: Doug Gillin  
County Manager     Director of Athletics 

 

___________________   ___________________ 

Date Signed      Date Signed 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

651



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

and 

APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

USE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS USE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made and entered into as of the second signature 
below (“Execution Date”) by and between Watauga County (“County”), and Appalachian State 
University, a constituent institution of the University of North Carolina (“University”). Watauga 
County and Appalachian State University may each be referred to herein individually as a 
"Party" or collectively as the "Parties."  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Appalachian State University desires to utilize the parking lot at 132 
Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking deck at 140 N. Water Street as set forth below; 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has resolved to allow Appalachian 
State University use of the parking lot at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking 
deck at 140 N. Water Street for the term set forth below; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, said 
County does hereby agree to allow University to use parking spaces marked by lines in 
paved lots in the parking lot located at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking deck 
at 140 N. Water Street, Boone, lying and being in Watauga County, North Carolina. 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement are as follows: 

1. TERM: The parking lot located at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking deck 
at 140 N. Water Street shall be available to University for the pre- and postgame events 
during the 2025 football season. Such dates and times shall be determined in accordance 
with University's football schedule. Notice of game dates and times shall be provided to 
the County prior to the event. The term of this Agreement shall extend from September 
6, 2025 through December 20, 2027. 

2. PAYMENTS: University shall pay to the County for the use of said lot the sum of Ten 
Thousand Dollars ($10,000) in one lump sum payment, annually, for the use of the 
premises. Such payment shall be made every year before the start of the first event. 
Additionally, the University shall pay a License Fee of 50% of net sales to the County 
from game day parking revenue generated from the parking deck at 140 N. Water 
Street. License Fee from sales related to the parking deck shall be paid within 30 days 
of the conclusion of each season The University shall be responsible for providing 
security on the dates of use during the term of this Agreement and for removing all 
unauthorized vehicles. University is responsible for ensuring that no individuals shall 
enter any structures or buildings located on the premises. County shall provide a 
parking pass to each individual who pays for the use of the parking facilities, which 
shall include indemnification language. University shall also provide portajohns for use 
at the lot on event dates. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

652



3. USE OF PREMISES: The premises shall not be used for any illegal purposes, nor in any 
manner to create any nuisance or trespass, nor in any manner to vitiate the insurance or 
increase the rate of insurance on the premises. University agrees there shall be no 
tailgating, no consumption of alcohol, no open flame, and no picnicking at the parking lot 
located at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector and parking deck at 140 N. Water Street. The 
University shall only use the agreed-upon space for the parking of vehicles for the football 
game festivities and for the purposes as set forth above, and shall be responsible for 
providing employees of the University who will secure the premises, the occupants, and the 
property during the time period of this Agreement and until the property is vacated by any 
and all persons, vehicles, or remnants of use by University, its sub-University, assigns and 
authorized or unauthorized users. Upon the end of this Agreement, University shall return 
the premises to an equal to or better-than condition than it was as of the start date of the 
Agreement. Specifically, the University shall be responsible for towing unauthorized users 
of the space. University shall bear the sole cost of removal and towing for any vehicle left 
on the premises at the termination of the Agreement. 

4. ALTERATIONS: The University shall not paint or decorate the premises or make any 
alterations, additions or improvements in or to the premises without the County's prior 
written consent, and then only in a workmanlike manner using materials and contractors 
approved by the County. All such work shall be done at the University's expense and at 
such times and in such manner as the County may approve. All alterations, additions, and 
improvements upon the premises, made by either the County or the University, shall 
become the property of the County and shall remain upon and become a part of the 
premises at the end of the use. 

5. INDEMNIFICATION: To the extent permitted by law, University agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless County from any liability arising from any breach of contract or any 
other action related to, or incidental to, the performance of this contract. The parties to this 
Agreement agree that nothing in this Agreement constitutes a waiver of University's 
sovereign immunity, and that University's obligations in this paragraph shall be limited to 
the extent and manner of recovery provided in North Carolina's State Tort Claims Act, N.C. 
Gen. Stat.§ 143-291, et. seq. 

6. INSURANCE: University represents and warrants that it is self-insured with respect 
to tort claims and shall remain self-insured therefor to the extent permitted by North 
Carolina law for the entire term of this Agreement. A certificate of insurance shall be 
provided to the County upon request. 

7. DESTRUCTION OF OR DAMAGES TO PREMISES: If the premises are 
destroyed by storm, fire, lightening, earthquake or other casualty, or if the spaces 
become unavailable or unusable for any reason whatsoever, this Agreement shall 
terminate as of the date of such destruction or unavailability and Agreement shall be 
accounted for as between the County and the University as of that date. If the premises 
are damaged, but not wholly destroyed by any such casualties, payment shall abate in 
such proportion as effective use of the premises has been affected. 

8. GOVERNMENT ORDERS: University agrees to comply promptly with all 
requirements of any legally constituted public authority made necessary by reason of 
University's use of the premises or any other person/entity's use of the premises on 
University's behalf. In the event a governmental authority, private action, or any other event 
occurs, which imposes a requirement upon the County, which would result in a hardship to 
County to remedy, the County may declare this Agreement void and the term of this 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

653



Agreement shall cease.  

9. EVENTS OF DEFAULT: The happening of any one or more of the following events 
(hereinafter any one of which may be refe1red to as "Event of Default") during the term of 
this Agreement, shall constitute a breach of this Agreement on the part of the University; 

(a) University fails to make payments as provided for herein; 

(b) University fails to comply with or abide by and perform any other obligation 
imposed upon University under this Agreement; or any unlawful or unauthorized 
use of the premises occurs, as set forth in paragraph above, entitled "Use of 
Premises." 

(c) A permanent receiver is appointed for University's property and such receiver is not 
removed within sixty (60) days after written notice from County to University to 
obtain such removal; 

(d) University, either voluntarily or involuntarily, takes advantage of any debt or relief 
proceedings under any present or future law, whereby the payment or any part 
thereof is, or is proposed to be reduced or payment thereof deferred; 

(e) University makes an assignment for benefit of creditors; 

(f) Any other violation of the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

 

10. TERMINATION: Either Party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement at 
any time, and for any reason, by providing thirty (30) days notice to the other party.  

11. COUNTY'S ENTRY OF PREMISES: At any time during University's use, 
County or any representative of County may enter the premises to inspect the 
premises, exhibit it to prospective University/Purchasers, and to make repairs. 

12. NOTICES: All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered to or sent by U.S. certified mail, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices to University shall be delivered or sent 
to the address shown at the beginning of this Agreement with a copy sent to 
Appalachian State University, Office of General Counsel, Attn: General Counsel, 
ASU Box 32126, Boone, North Carolina 28608-2126. 

13. NO BAILMENT CREATED: No bailment is created by this agreement, and 
County assumes no liability, whatsoever, for any vehicle, any person located 
therein, any personal property on the premises, or any item in a vehicle, or any 
person being in or parked on the premises except to the extent that any such 
damage or injury occurs due to the negligence or intentional acts of County or 
its officers, employees or agents. Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a 
waiver of the County's governmental immunity. 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the 
parties hereto, and no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, 
oral or otherwise, between the parties, not embodied herein shall be of any force 
or effect. This Agreement may not be modified except by a writing signed by 
all of the parties hereto. This Agreement shall supersede any prior agreement 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

654



made between the parties, relating to the subject matter of this agreement, 
whether oral or in writing. 

 

15. NONWAIVER: Failure of the County to insist upon strict compliance with the 
Agreement at any point shall not be construed as a waiver of any terms 
contained in his Agreement or prohibit full enforcement of the rights contained 
in the Agreement herein. 

16. ASSIGNMENT: The University shall not assign this Agreement or sublet the 
premises in whole or in part. 

17. GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS: 

(a) No boats, trailers, or campers shall be parked in the parking area; 

(b) No trash or personal property shall be left on the property. 
University Agreements the spaces as designated herein only. Any 
trash, vehicles or personal property left on the premises will be 
removed at the University's expense. 

(c) Portable toilet facilities shall be provided by the University at its sole 
expense in both parking lot locations in amounts sufficient for the 
comfort of those utilizing the premises.  

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the said parties of the first and second part herein, have 
hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals, the day and year first above written. 

 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY    APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY  

 

 

_______________________________  ____________________________________ 

By: Deron Geouque    By: Doug Gillin  
County Manager     Director of Athletics 

 

___________________   ___________________ 

Date Signed      Date Signed 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

655



Blank Page 
 
 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

656



AGENDA ITEM 14: 

BREAK 

AGENDA ITEM 15: 

CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney-Client Matters – G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Land Acquisition – G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(5) 
Personnel Matters – G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(1) 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

657



Blank Page 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

658



AGENDA ITEM 16: 

POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting

659



Additional Information 
Presented During the 

Board Meeting 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



AMENDED AGENDA ITEM 13: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

C. Howard Knob Park Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
At the July 15, 2025 meeting, the Board tabled the request to allow the County Attorney to address 
concerns with the vendor regarding Paragraph 7 – “Limitation of Liability” and Paragraph 18 – 
“Disputes”, particularly the litigation clause requiring all disputes to be adjudicated in the state of 
New York.  The County Attorney is now satisfied with the changes made by WSP.  The project 
requires no County funding and is to be paid by the Watauga TDA and grant funds.   

Staff requests a motion to approve the contract with WSP in the amount of $37,500 for construction 
materials testing services for the Howard Knob project.   

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



AMENDED AGENDA ITEM 13: 
 
MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

D. Announcements 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 

Ribbon Cutting Invitation – Middle Fork Greenway 
 

The Watauga Arts Council would like to extend an invitation to the Board and community to attend 
a ribbon-cutting ceremony for the new section of the Middle Fork Greenway, hosted in partnership 
with the Blue Ridge Conservancy. The event will take place on Thursday, August 14th at 4:00 PM 
near Tweetsie Railroad, at the underpass on the right side of the parking lot by the new split-rail 
fence. 

 
The celebration will highlight the completion of the newest trail segment and recently finished 
murals in the tunnel (with one more still in progress). Attendees will also receive updates on 
progress along the Middle Fork Greenway corridor. 
 
This project represents continued collaboration and strong community support for outdoor 
recreation and connectivity in the High Country. 
 
 
 
AppHealthCare Grand Opening and 10th Anniversary Celebration 
 

AppHealthCare has extended an invitation to attend the grand opening of their mobile health 
services and to celebrate the 10th anniversary of their designation as a Community Health Center. 
The event will be held on Friday, August 8, 2025, from 11:00 AM to 12:00 PM at the 
AppHealthCare Watauga Health Center, located at 126 Poplar Grove Connector in Boone. 
 
The celebration will include a ribbon-cutting ceremony, light refreshments, a tour of the new 
mobile health unit, and remarks from AppHealthCare staff. 

2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting



2025-08-05 BCC Meeting


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	2.   Approval of Minutes
	3.   Approval of the August 5, 2025 Agenda
	4.   Public Comment
	5.   Lucky Dog Vintage Market - Use of Human Services Lot
	6.   Blue Ridge Rising Resolution
	7.   SDR Final Debris Removal Cost
	8.   Watauga Cooperative Extension - Proposed County Vehicle Purchase
	9.   Maintenance Matters
	A.   Utility Vehicle Purchase Request
	B.   Contract Renewal for Recreation Center HVAC Monitoring

	10.   Emergency Services Matters
	A.   Tower Construction and Site Modifications Contract
	i.   Rich Mountain
	ii.   Aho
	iii.   Buckeye

	B.   Emergency Services Facility Tower Engineering Contract
	C.   Radio System Maintenance Contract Renewal

	11.   Appointment of Members to Fire Appendices Committee
	12.   Sanitation Department Trailer Purchase Request
	13.   Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.   Resolution to Approve Amendment No. 2
	B.   Proposed Human Services Parking Lot and Parking Deck Agreement with Appalachian State University

	14.   Break
	15.   Closed Session
	16.   Possible Action after Closed Session
	Additional Information Presented During the Board Meeting



